Statement of Accounts

Newry, Mourne and Down District
Council

For the Year Ended 315t March
2021

Comhairle Ceantair

9 an Iuir, Mharn
agus an Duin

A Newry, Mourne
and Down
District Council




Contents Page

Page
Number
Narrative Report 2
Statement of the Council's and Chief Financial 20
Officer's Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts
Annual Governance Statement 21
Remuneration Report 38
Certificate of the Chief Financial Officer 45
Council Approval of Statement of Accounts 45
Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members 46
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 51
Movement in Reserves Statement 52
Balance Sheet 53
Cash Flow Statement 54

Notes to the Accounts 55



Narrative Report

Organisational overview and external environment

With an estimated population of 181,368, a coastline of approximately 150 kilometres, and
encompassing an area of 1,634 square kilometres, we have three Areas of Outstanding
Natural Beauty; Mourne, Ring of Gullion, and Strangford and Lecale.

With approximately 981 employees and an annual budget of circa £59M made up from
rates income, grants from central government and income generated from specific
services, we are the third largest of the eleven local government districts in Northern Ireland.
Qur 41 elected members from our seven district electoral areas serve a diverse population,
23% of which is aged 15 years and below, and 16% being 65 years and older.

SLIEVE CROQB

CROTLIEVE
THE MOURNES

SLIEVE GULLION

During our first five years we established a new governance and organisational structure,
delivered major new facilities and projects for the benefit of residents and visitors, facilitated
agreement with partners on the Community Plan, secured major City Deal investment for
the future and began work on publishing a new Local Development Plan Preferred Options
Paper to shape planning across the district for the years ahead.



While we acknowledge the COVID19 pandemic may be a continuing feature and have an
impact upon Council services, our new Corporate Plan [2021-2023) will continue to guide
Council's activities and how we dllocate our resources over the next two years. In doing so
we will work closely with all our partners in government and with the private, voluntary and
community sectors and strive to provide our staff with the development support and
resources needed o provide better outcomes and high-quality services for all.

Governance
The figure below illustrates the assurance framework in place within the Council {approved

annually by the Audit Committee), that provides information on compliance with various
elements of the Council's Governance arrangements.
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Our Code of Governance - how the Council manages its affairs

Policies, Procedures and Processes

Council's Assurance Mapping and Code of Governance was revised and approved by the
Audit Committee on 5 July 2021. This was a best practice recommendation coming from the
Audit Committee self-assessment camied out by the independent chair of the Audit
Committee in January 2019. The Annual Governance Statement on page 21 details the
Council’s Code of Governance and significant Governance issues facing the Council. The
Annual Governance Statement also details the special governance arangements which
were in place due to COVIDI19.

Operational model

Each year, the Council must ensure it has the resources it needs to deliver services to the
standard expected by its ratepayers. Budget plans are submitted to the relevant commitiees
for approval regarding what the Council hopes to do and how much it will cost. This helps



Councit understand how much is required, and taking account of other sources of income,
what ‘rate’ needs to set for the district to raise the required money.

The Council's sources of budgeted income for the year ended 31 March 2021 were as
follows;

District Rate from Households and Businesses | £56,346,735
Grants from Central Government £2,855,987
Other £99,278
Total £59.302,000

The budgeted income went towards the delivery of the following services, in the year ended
31 March 2021-

#

How we spend your money in 2020/21

Recreation and sport £7,640

Community services £2,141

Tourism 5% £3,102

Culture and heritage Ix £1,693

Waste collection & disposal 2ax £12,224

Other deaning a £2,660
& public conveniences

Environmental health % £2,011

Cemeteries, minar works 1% £580
& licensing

Bullding control

@ Community planning 1% £335
. Economic developmsent Fa 3 £1,218
@ PFlanning policy b1 £1,005
. Democratic representation % £1.215
& management
@ Otherservices 26% £15,568
Total budget
. Loan interest and financing 12% £7,362

£59,302,000 i

Risks and opportunities

The Council has an embedded process to manage risks and assist the achievement of its
objectives and performance targets. The Corporate Risk Register plays an integral role in



supporting production of the Corporate Pian and is subject to a quarterly review by the
Audit Committee and the Senior Management Team (SMT).

The key elements of the risk management process are highlighted below:
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In order to assist the Chief Financial Officer in fulfiling her responsibilities, the Council have
put in place a process for assurance / stewardship reporting. The assurance statements
should reflect any significant internal control issues in the relevant Directorate or Service
Area and are timed to support the Accounting Officer in her preparation of the Annual
Governance Statement. Directors and Assistant Directors provide Assurance Statements to
the Chief Executive and Audit Services Manager on a quarterly basis.

The Council had 12 Corporate Risks at 5 July 2021, which included:

Failure to deliver the capital investment programme for the District;

Breach of legislation/legislative challenge in relation fo the procurement of goods

and services and works;

Non-compliance with legislative requiremenits, including Health and Safety:

Failure to effectively manage waste;

Failure to provide timely planning decisions;

Failure to adequately plan for the future and deliver efficiencies and improvement

Failure to adequately react to a major incident which would minimise any negative

consequences/impact;

8. Fadilure to implement an economic development programme to regenerate the
district and attract inward investment due to financial uncertainties caused by the
current economic and political climate, including the Northern Ireland Protocol:

9. Lack of standardised T&Cs of employment leading to the failure to tfransform services
and could impact on current service delivery;

10. Failure to adequately manage sickness absence resulting in delays and an inability

o deliver Council services;

N
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11. Risk that Council does not assist the post COVID19 recovery of the district, therefore
failing in its objectives to regenerate and build a prosperous district due to the
inability of Council to be financially sustainable in the long term;

12. Failure to adequately manage the Cyber Security attack.

Controls are in place to manage the risks were possible, and where actions have been
identified to further mitigate the risk, these are being progressed by members of SMT and the
Corporate Management Teams {CMT).

Council currently has one risk with a red residual score rating. These risks are highlighted
above {bold lialics).

Internal Audit completed a review of Risk Management in March 2021. The review received
a satisfactory assurance rating. However, Council's Risk Strategy was revised to comply with
HM Treasury's best Practice {Orange Book, Management of Risk; Principles & Concept). The
revised Risk Strategy was approved by the Audit Committee in July 2021.

The key changes to the best practice and our policy include:
e The introduction of five main principles of risk management and a number of
supporting principles;
¢ The introduction of the “three lines of defence" model which provides a simple and
effective way to delegate risk management roles and responsibilities;
The provision of clear roles and responsibilities for those involved in; and
A risk appetite statement for Council.



Financial Statements

The Council's financial performance for the year ended 31st March 2021 is as set out in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and it's financial position is as set out in
the Balance Sheet and Cash Flow Statement.

These financial statements have been prepared in line with the Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom for the year ended 31st March 2021 (the Code)
and the Department for Communities Accounts Direction, Circular LG 08/2021. It is the
purpose of this foreword to explain, in an easily understandable way, the financial facts in
relation to the Council.

This Statement of Accounts explains Newry, Mourne and Down District Council’s finances
during the financial year 2020/21 and its financial position at the end of that year. It follows
approved accounting standards and is necessarily technical in parts.

The purpose of the Narrative Report is to provide information on the authority, its main
objectives and sirategies ond the principal risks it faces.

Group Accounts

The Code requires Local Authorities to consider all their interests and to prepare a full set of
group financial statements where they have material interests in subsidiaries, associates or
joint ventures. The Council does not have material interests in such bodies and accordingly
is not required to prepare group financial statements.

The Movement in Reserves Statement

This Statement, as set out on page 52, shows the movement in the year on the different
reserves held by Council, analysed into 'usable reserves’ {i.e. those that can be applied to
fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other reserves. The ‘Surplus or (deficit) on
the provision of services' line shows the true economic cost of providing the Council’s
services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Summary (CIES).

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

This statement, as set out on page 51, shows the accounting cost in the year of providing
services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the
amount to be funded from rates income. Council's raise rates income to cover expenditure
in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost. The rates
income position is shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The Balance Sheet

The Balance Sheet, as set out on page 53, shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of
the Council's assets and liabilities. The net assets of the Council {assets less liabilities) are
matched by the reserves held by the Council. Reserves are reported in two categories. The
first category of reserves are usable reserves, ie those reserves that the Council may use to
provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any
statutory limitations on their use (for example the Capital Receipts Reserve that may only be
used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). The second category of reserves are those
that the Council is not able to use to provide services. This category of reserves includes
reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses {for example the Revaluation Reserve), where
amounts would only become available to provide services if the assets are sold; and



reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line
‘Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under reguiations’.

The Cash Flow Statement

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Council
during the reporting period. The statement shows how the Council generates and uses cash
and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing
activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of
the extent to which the operations of the Council are funded by way of rates income and
grant income or from the recipients of services provided by the Council. Investing activities
represent the extent to which cash outflows have been made for rescurces which are
intended to contribute to the Council’s future service delivery. Cash flows arising from
financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of
capitat (i.e. borrowing) to the Council.

Basis of Preparation

The Council's Statement of Accounts are prepared on an accruals basis and are intended
to present to readers a true and fair view of financial activity during the 2020/21 year. There
are strict controls governing the accounting standards that must be complied with,
accounting policies must be applied on a consistent basis and officers must follow relevant
accounting and disclosure requirements.

There are also materiality thresholds 1o be adhered to and officers are obliged to make
judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent and have endeavours to
ensure that as much information as possible has been presented to make the accounts as
user friendly as possible within these limitations.

Revaluation of Assets

A valuation exercise was camied out by Land and Property Services (LPS) as at 31 March
2021 on the Council's land and buildings. As a result, the value of land and buildings have
decreased from £177.7 million at 31 March 2020 to £174.3 million at 31 March 2021. In light
of COVID19, LPS has included a disclaimer in their report. The following disclosure has been
added to the accounts and we are satisfied that appropriate values have been applied to
the revaluation of assets in accordance with the relevant guidance:

“Valuations of Land and Buildings are carried out externally by Land and Property Services
{LPS). in accordance with the methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the
professional standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS). As at the
valuation date, LPS considers that due to the COVIDI19 pandemic, there is a shortage of
reliable market evidence for comparison purposes, fo inform opinions of value. Therefore,
the valuations provided by LP§ were reported on the basis of ‘'material valuation
uncertainty’ as per VPS 3 and VPGA 10 of the RICS Global Standards, Consequently, less
certainty, and a higher degree of caution, should be aftached fo the valuations than would
normally be the case. However, LPS advised that their material uncertainty clause serves as
a precaution and does not invalidate the valuation.”



Performance Report

It has been a challenging period of change during which the Council has continued to
define its new role and purpose, develop new policies and strategies, renew its key
infrastructure, integrate and modernise its services and meet ever increasing statutory
obligations whilst managing expectations and competing demands.

The Council's Business Planning and Performance Management Framewaork drives and
provides assurance that community planning outcomes, corporate objectives and
performance improvement objectives are being delivered, with the primary goal of making
life better for our citizens.
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Through the Business Planning and Performance Management Framework, the Council
manages performance at all levels across the organisation, in order to ensure the necessary
steps are taken to secure continuous improvement in the exercise of functions. Each level of
the Business Planning and Performance Management Framewaork is, and will be,
accompanied by a relevant set of performance measures to monitor and assess the
Council's progress in improving the quality of life for local communities.



The table below provides a description of the various plans and strategies that form part of
the Council's Business Planning and Performance Management Framework.

B T e ST

e — T ——

Community
Plan

S e

The Community Plan for Newry, Mourne and Down sets out the long-
term vision for improving the economic, social and environmental
wellbeing of the District. Developed in collaboration with partners
across the statutory, business and voluntary sectors, the Community Plan
is underpinned by Priority Actions Areas and seven DEA Action Plans,
which seek to deliver the five community planning outcomes at a local
level. Progress in implementing the Community Plan is reviewed on @
biennial basis.

Corporate Plan

The Corporate Plan 2021-23 sets out the vision, values and strategic
objectives for the Council. Each strategic objective is underpinned by
'supporting actions’ and ‘measures of success'. Progress in delivering
the Corporate Plan is reported annually through the NMD Connect
Newsletter and Assessment of Performance.

Thematic Plans
and Strategies

The Council has put in place a number of Thematic Plans and Strategies
to support the implementation of the Community Plan and Corporate
Plan, including the Performance Improvement Plan, Mediurm Term
Financial Plan and Regeneration and Economic Development Strategy.
These plans provide the strategic context for multiple programmes of
work across the organisation.

Directorate
Business Plans

Business Plans are developed annudlly to demonstrate how Directorates
contribute to the achievement of community planning outcomes,
corporate objectives and performance improvement objectives,
Directorate Business Plans include suites of key performance measures
to measure progress and drive continuous improvement, with
performance being monitored and reviewed bi-annually by the
relevant Committee.

Service Plans
and
Improvement
Projects

Service Plans and Improvement Projects are operational and set out the
direction for service areas across the Council. They outlineg how each
service contributes to the delivery of community planning outcomes,
corporate objectives and performance improvement objectives,
include key performance measures and provide a mechanism to
manage performance consistently across the organisation.

People Perform
Grow

The Council recognises the significant role employees play in
contributing to the achievement of the Community Plan, Corporate
Plan, Thematic Plans and Strategies, Directorate Business Plans and
Service Plans. People Perform Grow will demonstrate the link between
the work of employees and how they contribute to the achievement of
key plans and strategies. as well as the outcomes experienced by local
communities.

— =

Community Plan

The Council's community planning vision is “Newry, Moume and Down is a place with sirong.
safe and vibrant communities where everyone has a good qudlity of life and access to
opportunities, choices and high-quadiity services which are sustainable, accessible and meet
peopie’s needs." 'Living well together’ is published on the Council's website and outlines the
Council's ambitions for the District until 2030.

Since launching the Living Well Together Community Plan, community planning partners and
local communities have come together to deliver high quality services and opportunities. This
ensures that local people have a say in what programmes and policies are implemented
and is built on the understanding that more can be achieved when we all work together in

partnership.
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Council are concentrating on what we can do together to achieve our goals. We have now
more focused priorities including mental health, physical activity, tourism, access to quality
housing, and implementing new initiatives such as Participatory Budgeting and the
Community Support Partnership.

As part of our statutory responsibilities under the Local Government Act (NI} 2014, we are
required to monitor progress against the objectives of the Community Plan. Every two years
we are also required to publish a statement of the progress we have made. The summary
document ‘Our Journey' can be accessed on the Council website. This outlines what we
have accomplished from 2015 to the present. A brochure oullining last year's initiatives can
be accessed here https://www.newrymournedown.org/communities-leading-change. A further
statement of progress will be published in November 2021, with a review of the Community
Plan scheduled to be published during 2022.

Some of Council's main achievements are:

s Seven District Electoral Area [DEA)}Forums have been established;

¢ The Communities Leading Change Participatory Budgeting initiative has been rolled
out. A total of £30,000 has been allocated to community groups across the district,
with 2000 people participating and 70 groups funded. Nine partners have
contributed support or funding to this initiative;

« Development of a Housing Needs Action Plan to be implemented by the Housing
Needs Subgroup:

e Undertaken an Asset Mapping Project to identify surplus land and buildings that can
be used more effectively;

e Establishment of a Community Support Partnership which ensures that key public
services work together to respond to the needs of vulnerable people;

« Development of a project to better coordinate the referral of individuals to Council
leisure facifities;

¢ Successful completion of an online citizen engagements pilot project; and
Creation of the Strategic Stakeholders Forum's post COVID19 Recovery and Renewal
document.

Corporate Plan

Newry, Mourne and Down District Council's Corporate Plan 2021-23 was approved by the
Strategy, Policy and Resources Committee on 17 December 2020 and sets out the following
mission statement: 'To support and advocate for a welcoming District which is progressive,
healthy and sustainable, providing better economic, environmental and social outcomes for
all', Progress in delivering the eight strategic objectives within the Corporate Plan will be
monitored, reviewed and reported on an annual basis through NMD Connect and the
Assessment of Performance.

Performance Improvement Plan

Part 12 of the Local Government (NI} Act 2014 sets out a General Duty of Improvement for
local government, whereby all District Councils are required to put in place

arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the exercise of their functions. Each
financial year, Councils are required to set performance improvement objectives for the
services they provide. The guidance states that performance improvement is more than
quantifiable gains in service output or efficiency, or in the internal effectiveness of an
organisation. Improvement should focus on activity that enhances the sustainable quality
of life and environment for communities.

In response to the impact of the COVID19 pandemic, the Department for Communities {DC})
confirmed that Councils were not required to publish a Performance Improvement Plan for
the 2020-21 financial year. The performance improvement cbjectives have been reviewed
and updated within the context of the Corporate Plan 2021-23 and the 'proposals for
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improvement' which were put forward by the NI Audit Office in 2019, taking into account the
impact of COVID19 on our District, communities and services.

The 2021/22 Performance Improvement Plan was approved by the Strategy, Policy and
Resources Committee on 17 June 2021 and published on the Council's website ahead of
the statutory deadline of 30 June 2021. The performance improvement objectives do not
describe every improvement the Council plans to make during 2021-22. Alternatively, they
provide an overview of how the Council will address the issues which matter most to local
communities. The Performance Improvement Objectives for 2021-22 are:

1. We will encourage local people to lead healthy and active lives by improving the
quality of our parks and open spaces;

2. We will grow the economy by supporting local businesses and creating new jobs;

3. We willimprove the cleanliness of our District by addressing littering, fly tipping and
dog fouling incidents;

4. We will build the capacity of local communities through the Financial Assistance
Scheme; and

5. We willimprove the processing times of planning applications and enforcement
cases by implementing the Planning Service Improvement Programme.

In the absence of published performance improvement objectives 2020-21, the Council has
continued to monitor performance by establishing a baseline to report progress against the
‘measures of success’ which underpin the performance improvement objectives 2021-22,
including the statutory performance indicators and standards. The table below provides an
overview of performance during 2020-21.

Performance Progress Status
Improvement Objective Trend
95.9% reduction in recorded attendances at Council

leisure centres

79% reduction in the number of participants on
Everybody Active 2020

91% of users said they are likely to return to the Councils
leisure centres

We will encourage local 3 ‘blue flag' beaches and 4 ‘green flag’ parks
people to lead healthy
and active lives by 84% of visitors are satisfied with Warmenpoint Park and 89%
improving the quality of agree the park enhances their local quality of life
our parks and open 72.6% increase in recorded visits at four community trails
spaces

Between 2018-2019, 14.7% increase in overnight stays and
20.7% increqse in visitor spend

164 new jobs promoted through business start activity

40 social enterprise businesses supported and 13 new
social enterprise jobs created

327 businesses supported and 47.5 jobs created through
‘NMD Growth’, ‘Qigitcl Growth' and 'Tender for Growth'

We will grow the
economy by supporting
local businesses and

Up to 1,000 businesses engaged in the #re:Launch
Leadership Summit and 400 participanis teok part in NMD
Enterprise Week

creating new jobs - -
Increase in the number of VAT and/or PAYE registered

businesses, birth rate of new businesses and employee
jobs

D> | O 0|©O1>|DIOO|O|4]<

=t

2



103% increase in the number of job seekers and out of
work universal credit claimants

We will improve the
cleanliness of our District
by addressing littering,
fly tipping and dog
fouling incidents

Decrease in the number of fixed penalty notices issued
and paid

Decrease in the number of community clean ups
supported

1114

Slight decrease in the rate of recycling, to 52.6%

One of the lowest levels of waste sent to landfill across all
NI Councils

LEAMS (street cleanliness) score of é4 retained and falls
just below the regional average of 65

60 schools participated in the calendar poster
competition

15 schools attended the virtual teachers Eco-Schools
Information event

We will build the
capacity of lecal
communities through the
Financial Assistance
Scheme

£731k awarded to 377 projects across 18 thematic areas

Electronic Grant Management System launched and
online training module developed

Newry, Down and Kilkeel Leisure Centres tempaorarily
converted to food distribution hubs between March-
August 2020

18,407 food parcels delivered to vulnerable households
and 144 community organisations enlisted as volunteers

72% of residents agree that the local areais a place
where people from different backgrounds get on well
together

e

L

We will improve the
processing times of
planning applications
and enforcement cases
by implementing the
Planning Service
Improvement
Programme

The Council received, decided on and approved the
highest number of planning applications acress the 11
Councils

The processing time for local planning applications
improved from 20.6 weeks in 2019-20 to 19 weeks in 2020-
21

The processing time for major planning applications
improved from 94 weeks in 2019-20 to 64.6 weeks in 2020-
21

The percentage of enforcement cases processed within
39 weeks increased from 36.2% in 2019-20 to 40.9% in
2020-21

D ID|D|Ol0|6|©® |0 OB0|v©

*The 2020 tourism estimates have not yet been published by the NI Stalistics and Research Agency {NISRA) and the
2019 Local Government District {LGD} tourism data is reported.
=*The 2020-21 data in relation to the statutory performance indicators for wasle management remains provisional, as
the end of year data is cumently being validated by DAERA and will be published in Q3 2021-22.

Directorate Business Plans

All Directorates continued to monitor and report progress in delivering the Emergency
Business Plans during 2020-21. Below is a snapshot of some of the successes from each
Department for the 2020/21 year:
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Enterprise, Regeneration and Tourism Directorate
o 84% of visitors are satisfied with Warrenpoint Park and 89% agree the park enhances

their local quality of life;
s Issued 807 letters of offer, with a combined value of approximately £1.1m to assist
local businesses as they navigate the impact of COVID19;
Regeneration and Economic Development Strategy 2020-25 launched;
A total of 12 artisan markets took place in Downpatrick, Newcastle and Warrenpoint;
Online Christmas and St Patrick's concerts reached 194,00 online viewers;
Webinar series delivered to around 140 tourism and hospitality businesses and
mentoring support provided to 13 tourism and hospitality businesses; and
+ 25 tourism and hospitality businesses engaged in the development of new and
existing tourisrn businesses.

Active gnd Healthy Communities Directorate
e 97,281 recorded visits at four community trails;

s 507 clients directly benefitted from the services provided through the Ethnic Minority
Support Centre;

s  Worked in partnership with DAERA 1o establish import controls at Warrenpoint Harbbour
ahead of the fransition period for EU Exit;
2,279 attendances recorded on the Everybody Active programme; and
Broad range of physical activity and wellbeing programmes delivered virtually.

Neighbourhood Service Directorate

Refuse collection services continued, as normal, throughout the pandemic;
60 schools participated in the calendar poster competition and 6,000 copies of the
calendar were printed;

s Phase 2 extension compete for Monkshill cemetery and Phase 2 extension of
Warrenpoint Cemetery 50% complete.

Corporate Services and Chief Executives Deparfrent
86% of invoices paid within 30 calendar days;

Decrease in the number of days lost due to sickness absence;

49 social media campaigns delivered with an overall reach of 2.4m;

Arrangements for virtual Committee meetings in place;

Chairperson supported in camying out é6 virtual and in person engagements; and
Continued delivery of Capital Programme - Demymore House Regeneration Scheme
complete, Newry Lower Hill Street complete, rural El scheme complete.

Residents Survey
In September 2018, the Council commissioned a Residents Survey to establish a robust and
reliable evidence base in relation to resident perceptlions about their local area, the
performance of the Council and key priorities for improvement in the future. A
representative sample of 764 residents revealed that:
e 87% are satisfied with the Council overall and 73% trust the Council
e 75% agree that the Council makes Newry, Mourne and Down a good place to live
e« 41% believe the Council provides good value for money, which is above the GB
average of 51

The next Residents Survey will be camied out during 2022-23 to track and monitor resident
perceptions, satisfaction with Council services and the local area as a place to live.
Feedback from the Residents Survey will be used to inform the development of future plans
and strategies, including the Corporate Plan and Performance Improvement Plan.

The Council alsc caried out Custormner Satisfaction Surveys for Building Control in 2020 and
Leisure Facilities in 2019. Plans are currently in place to conduct further Customer Satisfaction
Surveys for Planning and Parks and Open Spaces during 2021-22.
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Expenditure and Funding Analysis

The resourcing of the Council's activities is outlined in the Annual Report, demonstrating the
funding available and what services this funding provided in 2020/21. The objective of the
Expenditure and Funding Analysis is to demonstrate to ratepayers how the funding available
to the Council (i.e. government grants, rates and business rates) for the year has been used
in providing services in comparison with those resources consumed or earned by authorities
in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. The Expenditure and Funding
Analysis also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes between
the Council's directorates. Income and expenditure accounted for under generally
accepted accounting practices is presented more fully in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure $tatement.

Financial Pefformance

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Council's General fund increased by £7.519k to
£19,228k. The budget plans formed part of the annual estimates for 2020/21. The total gross
income budget for the Council was set at £69,523k at June 2020. This was a revised budget
which was reprofiled at the request of SMT due to COVID19.

The Council reported a £9,440k underspend on service delivery at year end. Performance
against budget for each of the Committees is continuously monitored throughout the year.
Management Accounts are presented and scrutinised quarterly at the Strategic Policy and
Resources Committee {SP&R). The year-end Management Accounts position was presented
to Committee on 17 June 2021. The overall favourable position for the year ended 31 March
2021 can be attributed to:

e COVID19 Funding Support from the Department of Communities of £3.15m has been
included. A further payment of £2.4m was received in March 2021 relating to the
2021/22 Financial year and will be treated as a reserve in the accounts as at 31st
March 2021. In addition, Department of Agriculture, Environment and Rural affairs
(DEARA) grant aid of £1.35 has been included:;

Wages and salaries were £1.6m favourable against budget;

The Department provided on additional Rates Support Grant of £515k during 2020/21;
At vear end there was a positive Rates Finalisation of £1.26m which is reflected within
the management accounts;

o Income from the HMRC CQOVID19? Job Retention Scheme of £1.8%k has been
included;

s Overallincome (excluding grants) is showing £741k favourable based on the revised
figures, mainly due to positive variances in planning, Building Control, Trade Waste
and Leisure income,

The Cost of Services on Continuing Operations of £64.1m {2019/20 - £69.6m), as reported in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, also includes the accounting cost
of providing services in addition to the amount funded from taxation. The total net
expenditure reported in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is £1.4m
{2019/20 - £11.0m).

Borrowings

For the 2020/21 year the Council has an authorised borrowing limit of £128m. This is based on
the Council's forecast capital expenditure plans over the medium to long term. In
conjunction with the Council's capital financing requirement of £119.5m, this ensure the
Council only borrows for capital purposes.
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The Council currently holds £74.1m of loans, a decrease of £700k on the previous financial
year, as part of its strategy for funding previous years’ capital programmes. The balance
sheet forecast shows that the Council expects to borrow up to £246.1m by the end of 2021/22.
The Authority may also borrow additional sums to pre-fund future years' requirements,
providing this does not exceed the authorised limit for borowing of £128m.

During the year the Council repaid external loans of £4.7m. The Council borowed £4m to
fund ongoing capital projects. At 31 March 2021, the total amount outstanding on external
loans was £74.1m.

Capital Expenditure

The Council has an ambitious four-year capital programme of £58.8 miillion (February 2020).
The four-year capital programme is updated and approved annually by Council in February
each year. The investment will help Council meet the strategic objectives which are set out
in the Corporate Plan, The capital plan is continually reviewed by the Strategic Finance
Working Group.

The total net expenditure reported in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement includes allocations of £5.8m to fund capital expenditure.

The most significant capital projects which were completed during the year included:

Bann Road Pavilion at o £295k due to COVID19 restrictions this hos not yet opened.
Newry Tennis Court bubble at a cost of £275k.

Derrymore Playpark opened in March 2021 at a cost of £273k

Car -park at Strangford Road Depot completed at a cost of £180k

Ballykinlar Community Centre completed at a cost of £128k.

* @ & & »

Strateqy and resource gllocation

The Medium Term Financial Plan was approved by the Council in February 2020. In
accordance with the Local Government Finance Act (NI) 2011, the Chief Executive, as Chief
Financial Officer is required to provide assurance to members on the robustness of the
revenue estimates and the adequacy of the Council's reserves position as part of the rate
setting process. Detailed estimates were formulated, presented and scrutinised by members.
They took into account past outturn, current spending plans and likely future demand and
pressures.

When setting the district rate for 2020/21 (3 February 2020} considerafion was given to the
following key financial factors and uncertainties for the Council:

e Various uncertainties remained as to the impact of Brexit on the NI Economy and
NMDDC rate base and funding streams, and no provision had been made in the
estimates for any financial implications arising. Furthermore, included within our 2020-
21 estimates were various areas of funding received from the European Union under
programmes which we have been advised will continue during the 2020-21 year.

e There was no agreed budget by the NI Executive at February 2020. The absence of
an agreed budget had the potential to impact on the ability of the DfC to issue rates
support grant to Councils. Whilst the Local Government Finance Act (Northern
treland} 2011, Section 27 states that “the Department shall for each financial year
make a grant under this section to Councils” Councils were yet to be advised of the
total amount of Rates Support Grant being made available by the DFC for 2020-21.
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Other factors leading to the 2020/21 rate increase included:

s A 2% pay increase for Local Government employees has been negotiated and
agreed with the trade unions at a Northern Ireland level.

¢ The increased costs of waste and recycling contracts across the district.

¢ In Autumn 2018, a successful Judicial Review challenge to the Rates Support Grant
allocation resulted in a significant reduction to the calculated proportion of RSG to
be paid to NMDDC. DfC have advised that NMDDC will receive a considerable
reduction to its RSG allocation in the 2020-21 year.

s A revaluation of non-domestic rateable values was undertaken by Land and Property
Services during 2019 "Reval 2020", the impact of which has been included in
NMDDC's medium term financial plan.

Council officers provided a budget for that 2020/21 financial year, based on best estimates
of expenditure and income at that time. The COVID19 global pandemic could not have
been foreseen and therefore was not factored into the budgets agreed by Council.
COVID192 has impacted significantly on Council's finances.

As aresult of the impact of COVID19, Senior Management commenced a review and
revision of the 2020-21 budget. The objective of this review was to take account of the
impacts of COVID19 in our budgets; to reflect the significant losses of income anticipated but
also o review areas where expenditure can be reduced due to the impact of COVID19 on
our working practices and locations. SMT anticipated that budgets will require continual
monitoring and review as government changes to lockdown restrictions ease. Non-payroll
budgets were reduced by £1.6m and payroll budgets by £1.im in June 2020.

A detailed cashflow was prepared by management and reviewed with the Chief Executive
to provide her with assurance as to Council's ability to continue as a going concern. This was
reviewed and updated throughout the year. It is anticipated that easing of lockdowns and
reopening of facilities with the increased health and safety measures required because of
COVID19 will put considerable pressure on Council's cashflow and finances going forward.

Outlook

The Council is fully aware that it is operating in a continually challenging environment with
the ongoing COVID19 pandemic. The impact of COVID19 has significantly impacted on
Council’'s operations and finances in the current year. The future impact of COVIDI? on
operations, on our rate base and on our finances is uncertain, and many assumptions are
included in our budgets for 2021-22,

Various uncertainties remain as fo the impact of Brexit and the NI protocol will have on the NI
Economy and the Council. It is oo early to understand the fullimplications of NI Protocol on
jobs and investment in the district until trade negotiations are finalised and grace periods
come to an end.

The Council continues to face a range of significant budget pressures including general
inflafion, increases in demand for everyday services as the population grows, and increases
in core costs such as wage increases, the national living wage and pension contributions.
The Council will also face significant year on year increases in costs in several areas such as
waste disposal costs.

However, the Council is committed to delivering business as usual where possible and will
coniinue with our ambitions for the district included within our interim Corporate Plan 2021-23.
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The Council strives to deliver the highest standards and these efforts have been highlighted
below with some of Council's key achievements in the year ending 31 March 2021:

e NMDDC established the COVID19 Community Coordination hub in March 2020.
During the 17 weeks of shielding a total of 18,407 food boxes were delivered with the
assistance of 144 organisations and individuals throughout the District;

* A new Regeneration and Economic Development Strategy was launched in
Novermber 2020, the core of which is to support local businesses and attract
investment and jobs to the district;

¢ Hilltown and Kilclief have both seen the installation of new play parks;

¢ 3 'blue flag' beaches and 4 ‘green flag' parks;

¢ 181 new business starts supported and 164 new jobs promoted through business start
activity;

s To support the economic recovery of the District, the Council has issued
approximately 807 letters of offer, with a combined value of approximately £1.1m to
assist local businesses as they navigate the impact of COVIDI19:

¢ £731k awarded to 377 projects across 16 thematic areas via Council's financial
system scheme; and

¢ Council received 1,177 planning applications and decided on 1,038, which is the
highest across Northern Ireland.

The Council seeks out opportunities to pursue additional funding streams for the District,
adopting innovative approaches to delivering services and working in partnership to ensure
the Council optimises its resources to deliver on its eight key Corporate objectives. A few of
the current significant initiatives Council are currently developing are outlined below:

1. City Deal - The Belfast City Deal is a 10-year investment, with a vision of creating
20,000 new and better paid jobs. This investment will ensure that as a Council we can
take forward and implement strategic priorities, which will position our district as a key
investment location and visitor attraction, while providing stimulus for new and better
employment opportunities for all.

In total, £850m has been secured to deliver the investment. In May 2020 the NI
Executive announced a £350m investment commitment to match fund the £350m
already committed from the UK government. Together with an additional £150m from
the Belfast Region City Deal partners, the total amount of £850m was achieved.

The City Deal investment in infrastructure, regeneration and tourism projects will also
help the region's economic recovery from the effects of COVID19. During 2020-21,
the Council has progressed comprehensive Outline Business Cases for both the Newry
City Centre Regeneration and Gateway to the Mournes projects, while working with
City Deal partners on progressing regional programmes that will deliver digital and
innovation infrastructure and an employability and skills programme.

2. Fuli Fibre Northern Ireland (FFNI} - Fast, reliable digital connections have never been
more important, and it is crucial that our district is keeping pace. The Councilis a lead
merber of the FFNI Consortium, which is comprised of the 10 local authorities cutside
of Belfast and the Business Services Organisation.

The Consortium has been awarded £24m from the Department for Digital, Culture,
Media and Sport (DCMS) to implement a new collaborative programme to drive
greater investment in fibre and digital infrastructure across Northern Ireland. The
Consortium’s phased delivery programme will manage two DCMS funded
programmes - Local Full Fibre Network (LFFN} and Rural Gigabit Connectivity (RGC). It
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will also manage the delivery of further digital infrastructure initiatives and ensure a
vital local link for future digital programmes at local authority level.

This funding of £24m aims to deliver full fibre to 957 sites, which includes council
buildings, community centres, GP Surgeries, Ambulance stations and Fire Stations by
December 2021, using the "Public Sector Anchor Tenancy” approach. This represents
Phase 1 of a proposed longer-term programme of fibre related investment,

3. The Peace |V Programme - is a cross-border initiative designed to support peace and
reconciliation in Northern Ireland and the Border region. Council has been awarded

£ 4.7m of EU funding to deliver the PEACE IV Local Action Plan - Beyond Tolerance.

As the lead partner, we are responsible for delivering those elements of the PEACE IV
Action Plan that wili promote peace and reconciliation in three key areas:

e Children and Young Peopls;

e Shared Spaces and Services; and

e Building Positive Relations.

COVID19 restrictions on gatherings and the ability to bring people together from
across the community have been a challenge since March 2020. The Councils PEACE
IV programme has responded by leading the way with online project delivery across
a diverse range of projects.

As part of these themes, we have been involved in a number of exciting projects
including the Cross Border Civic Leadership programme for young people, Women
and Civic leadership programme and the Growing Relations programme.

The COVID19 pandemic has had a profound impact on alt aspects of life in the NMDDC
area. Throughout the 2021/22 year, Council will adopt a pro-active approach to ensure that
it responds to the emerging needs of the residents and businesses.

For the year ended 315t March 2021, Councit received the following funding from Central
Government in relation to COVID19;

1. £5,606k from DIC inrelation to COVID1? funding support;

2. £2,803k from DfC inrelation to the COVID19 Recovery Revitalisation programme and
Community Support funding;

3. £1,347k from DEARA; and

4. £1,8%1k from HMRC in relation to the furlough scheme.

Any funding which has not been spent in year has been included in the reserves at year end.
This funding is detailed at note 2éc in the financial statements. Further detail on how the
COVID1? funding was spent in year is detailed in note 2¢.

In line with all other Councils in Northern Ireland and the wider public sector, NMDDC is
facing several challenges. Public finances are under increasing as a result of the pandemic,
ongoing tightening of Government spending agendas, amongst other challenges. Key risks
and planned mitigations are included in our Annual Governance Statement on Pages 21 to
37.
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Statement of the Council's and Chief Financial Officer's Responsibilities for the Statement of
Accounts

The Council's Responsibilities

Under Section 1 of the Local Government Finance Act (Northern Ireland) 2011 a council
shall make arangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs. A council shall
designate an officer of the council as its chief financial officer and these arrangements shall
be carried out under the supervision of its chief financial officer.

Under Regulation 7 of the Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations {Northern
Ireland) 2015 the Council, or a Committee, is required by resolution, to approve the
accounts.

These accounts were approved by the Chief Executive on 2314 September 2021.
The Chief Financial Officer’s Responsibilities

Under Regulation 8 of the Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern
Ireland) 2015, the Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Council's
Statement of Accounts in the form directed by the Department for Communities.

The accounts must give a true and fair view of the income and expenditure and cash flows
for the financial year and the financial position as at the end of the financial year.

In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Chief Financial officer is required to:

¢ observe the Accounts Direction issued by the Department for Communities including
compliance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom;

e follow relevant accounting and disclosure requirements and apply suitable
accounting policies on a consistent basis, and

s make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent.

The Chief Financial Officer is also required to:
¢ keep proper accounting records that are up-to-date, and

e take reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
iregularities.
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NORTHERN IRELAND LOCAL GOVERNMENT BODIES'
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The Council's Annual Governance Statement follows the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the UK 2020/21 and DfC accounts directions. The Annual Governance
Statement comprises the following sections:

Scope of responsibility;

The purpose of the governance framework;

The governance framework;

Review of effectiveness;

Update on significant governance issues that were declared at the year-end
2019/20; and

« Significant governance issues for the year end 2020/21.

Scope of Responsibility

Newry, Mourne and Down District Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is
conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is
safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiency and
effectively.

Newry, Mourne and Down District Council alse has a duty under Local Government (Best
Value) Act {Northern Ireland) 2002 to make arrangements for continuous improvement in
the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy,
efficiency and effectiveness.

In discharging this overall responsibility, Newry, Mourne and Down District Council is
responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs,
facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, which includes arrangements for the
management of risk.

The Council has prepared an Annual Governance Statement, which is consistent with the
principles of the new CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local
Government {2016 edition). This statement explains how the Council has complied with the
code and meets the requirements of the Local Government (Accounts and Audit)
Regulations {Northern Ireland 2015) in relation to the publication of an Annual Governance
Statement.

The Purpose of the Governance Framework

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and values,
by which the local government body is directed and controlled and its activities through
which it accounts to, engages with and leads its communities. It enables the authority to
monitor the achievement of ifs strategic objectives and to consider whether those
objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-ettective services.

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to
manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies,
aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process
designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the local government
body's policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised

21



and the impact should they be redlised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and
economically.

The governance framework has been in place at Newry, Mourne and Down District Council
for the year ended 31 March 2021 and up to the date of approval of the financial
statements.

The governance framework

The Council's 41 elected members and its committee and management structure ensures
sound governance, ownership and scrutiny in the decision-making process across the entire

organisation. The committee and management structure demonstrate how the decision-
making process is implemented in Councit as follows:

Council's Management Structure

Council

Audit Committee Planning Committee
€ Acti d Health ] Strategy, Policy
conomy, ive and Healthy ) , Poli
Regenerationand  — Communities Ne:lghbourho?d — and Resources
Tourism Committee Committee Services Committee I Committee

Chief Executive

Strategic Democratic

Delivery Unit Services

Ditector:
Neighbourhood Services

Director:
Corporate Services

Director: Active and
Healthy Communiiies

Direcior: Economy.
Regeneration and Tourtsm

Assistant Director: Assistant Director: Assistant Director: Assistant Director:

Healthy Living | Corporate Support Regeneration Sustainability and
Services Waste Management

Assistant Director: Assistant Director:

Community Assistant Director: Economy, Growth Assistant Director:

Development == Finance and Asset and Tourism Street Scene

Management

Assistant Director:
Digital Information

*Proposed Directorate Structure included within the Corporate Plan 2021-23 - not yet
operational.

Decision making process from the period 16" March 2020 to 6™ July 2020
In response to COVID19, the Council altered our normal decision-making processes to

ensure that we followed Public Health Agency guidance on social distancing and essential
travel while maintaining continuity of critical services.
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At a special Council Meeting on the 16" March 2020, Members agreed to amend the
Standing Orders as follows:

'In the event of any civil emergency or any situation which urgent actions are required and
it is either not reasonably practical to convene a meeting of Committee or Council or of
any such meetings called is in court the Chief Executive or Chief Officer nominated by her
or him may exercise ail or any of the functions of the Council excepting those which are
reserved to the Council, pursuing section 7 of the local Government Act NI 2014. Any
decisions taken pursuing fo this Standing Order will be reported to the relevant Committee
or Council af the next available meeting. The Standing Order is to be read in conjunction
with paragraph 2.3 of Scheme of defegation and would happen following consultation with
political parties.’

On 28t Aprit 2020, Members agreed to amend the Standing Orders again to allow for
remote meetings, this amendment had been made to the regulations by the Executive.
Members agreed to ‘amend Council's Standing Orders by the inclusion of the wording as
set out in the Appendix to the officer’s report to facilitate the continued holding of ‘remote’
Committee and Council meetings unfil the necessary legislation is in force,’

On & July 2020 Members then approved to stand down delegated authority due to remote
Committee meeting now being operational. The record of decisions taken under delegated
authority at Party Reps Meetings from March 2020 — July 2020 were agreed and adopted at
this Council meeting. From 6% July 2020 onwards, the normal governance arangements
were back in place.

The process for committee decision making under delegated authority was reintfroduced on
4 May 2021 following the expiry of the legislation permitting the hosting of remote meetings
from &M May 2021. This process involves continuing fo hold remote committee meeting, with
the committee making recommendations to the Chief Executive or appropriate Chief
Officer to exercise delegated authorily to implement the recommendations.

Through the work of the committees, our Members oversee the work of the Council. All
Committee decisions need to be ratified by the full Council except where Committees have
been granted delegated authority to make decisions. The full Council, is the overarching
decision-making body.

The Enterprise, Regeneration and Tourism (ERT) Committee is responsible for the development
and implementation of strategies, policies, programmes and projects directed to the
regeneration and growth of the district in the context of the outcomes agreed in the
community and corporate plans. The ERT committee is also responsible for all matters
pertaining to policy and legislation in relation to building control and licencing issues.

The Active and Healthy Communities (AHC) Committee is responsible for the development
and implementation of strategies, policies, programmes and projects aimed at improving life
at local level in the context of the outcomes agreed in the community and corporate plans.

The Neighbourhood Services (NS) Committee is responsible for the development and
implementation of strategies, policies, programmes and projects aimed at ensuring the
waste service is delivered across the district in the context of the outcomes agreed in the
community and corporate plans.

The Strategic Policy & Resources {SP&R) Committee is responsible for setting the strategic
direction of the Council through the development of its corporate plan and other key
corporate and cross cutting strategies and policies. It will also ensure effective use of
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resources and value for money for ratepayers and oversee the Council's relationship with
several key agencies and partners,

The Audit Committee provides an independent assurance on the adequacy of the Council's
risk management framework and associated control environment. It provides an
independent scrutiny of the Council's financial and non-financial performance, which is
relied upon by Council, to the extent that it exposes it to risk and weakens the control
environment,

The Planning Committee is responsible for all the Council's planning functions, except those
matters, which are delegated to Officers or reserved to full Council.

In addition to the committees listed above, there are also 20 Project Boards and Forums
which have been established to support the work of Committees.

The Council has an Assurance Framework in place that provides sufficient, continuous and
reliable assurance on organisational stewardship and the management of major risk to
organisational success and the delivery of improved, cost effective services. The Assurance
Framework is reviewed and approved by the Audit Cormmittee annudlly. The framework is
structured and provides reliable evidence to underpin the assessment of risk and control
environment for the Annual Governance Statement.

The Council's Code of Governance is based on the seven core principles set out in the
CIPFA/SOLACE Framework (2016 edition}. How we meet these seven core principles is
reviewed and updated annually, and in particular for this year, ensuring that ocur update
reflects COVIDI19 related changes to our governance arrangements. A summary of the key
elements of our governance framework are set out in the following table:

SUnng Upenness
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Optimising the achievement of outcomes

Corporate and Directorate plans
Constitution

Strategic financial planning

Risk Management Policy

Vvvvvym

v

Developing Capacity and Capability
Organisational Development

People, Perform, Grow introduced

Learning and Development Policy in place
Harmonisation of policies

Development of a joint Employee Relations
consultation and negotiating policy

Elected Members Development Charter/
Member Leadership Programme

The Chief Executive is the Council's designated Chief Financial Officer under the Local
Govemment Finance Act (Northern Ireland) 2011, responsible for the proper administration of
the Council's financial affairs. Local Regulafions in Northern Ireland do not require the Chief
Financial Officer to be a professionally qualified accountant nor the role 1o be separated
from that of the Chief Executive as per the CIPFA principles. The Council is satisfied that the
Chief Executive is supported by a number of fully qualified and experience staff who are
members of various bodies within the Consultative Committee of Accountancy Bodies

(CCAB).

Having considered all the principles of the CIPFA Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of
Fraud and Corruption (2014), the Council has adopted a response that is appropriate for its
fraud and corruption risks and commits to maintain its vigilance to tackle fraud. The Council is
committed to the highest possible standards of openness, probity and accountability. The
Council has a Whistleblowing Policy where concerns can be raised. The policy is due to be
updated in the 2021/22 financial year. Fraud and Raising Concerns is a standing agenda

item at Audit Committee.

Codes of Conduct are in place for both staff and Elected Members and define the high
ethical values and standards of behaviour expected, to make sure that public business is
conducted with fairness and integrity. A Conflict of Interest Policy has also been introduced

for both staff and Members.
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Directors, Assistants Directors and Heads of Service are responsible for ensuring compliance
with relevant laws, regulations, internal policies and procedures. The Quartery Assurance
Statement Process provided to the Chief Executive provide an opportunity to reflect on this
point. Council has a Head of Legal Services, who is a practicing Sclicitor, there is also plans to
expand the internal legal function during 2021/22.

Council utilises various media streams to deliver internal and external communications, such
as the Council websites, publications, brochures, leaflets, social media and media
advertisements and broadcasts. The Council continues to explore ways 1o digitise services
and use online technology and social media to enhance communication with residents,
customers, businesses and potential visitors o the District. This has been particularly important
due to COVID19 and many services are now online due restrictions in place during the
pandemic {i.e. payments for building control / licences).

The Council continuously strives to have the highest standards of governance arangements
in place and endeavours to ensure that its partners also have high standards of governance
arrangement in place. Council would control this in numerous ways such as Service Level
Agreements, Letters of Offers and signed contracts.

As aresult of the new GDPR law in 2018, Council established new structures and processes so
that at any point in time the Council could provide assurance on the various Compliance
related tasks the new law prescribed whilst implementing best practice guidance from the
ICO & PRONI.

mindful Article 5{1){d) of the UK GDPR prescribes for personal data to be accurate, a
corporate wide Compliance programme of work commenced to ensure ‘data quality’ was
preserved for all Council information. That included:

Creating a new Compliance Team with specific roles & responsibilities;
Implementing new Corporate policies and procedures {Access to Information &
Record Management);

s Developing and delivering in house training including a suite of training materials to
build staff capacity:
Creating and providing annual performance measurement statistics (p48);

¢ Creating an Information Strategy vision "To provide accurate, accessible information
efficiently” and associated action plan;

e Conducting an audit of information including a Corporate wide data cleanse and
review of the cument Retention & Disposat Schedule; and

+ |dentification of Information Asset Owners

The were no breaches of personal data reported to the Infarmation Commissioner’s Office
{ICO) during 2020/21.

Review of Effectiveness

The Council has responsibility for conducting. af least annually, a review of the effectiveness
of its system of internal control. The review of effectiveness is informed by the work of the
Senior Management Team within Council who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the governance environment, the Internal Audit's annual report, and by
comments made by the external auditors.

Recommendations arising out of internal and external reviews are agreed with management
before finalisation to ensure that they will achieve the desired enhancement to the control
environment and are practical solutions. Registers are maintained of all cutstanding

26



recommendations and these are circulated at Audit Committes. Assistant Directors must
update quartery progress on implementing recommendations as part of the Assurance
Statement process. Follow up reviews are also reported to the Audit Committee.

The Chief Executive has responsibility for preparing this Annual Govermnance Statement, In
preparing this statement, she has considered the governance framework and system of
internal controls in place. The Chief Executive leads the Council's Senior Management Team
to collectively contribute and have oversight of the processes involved in maintaining and
reviewing the effectiveness of the governance framework. In producing this statement, full
regard has been made to the register of interests for both Members and employees, reports
of the internal and external auditor, the Corporate Risk Register, Assurance Statements
provided by each Director and Assistant Director for year ended 31 March 2021.

The Council itself maintains overall control of the governance framework and has been
involved, for example, in approving the implementation of the risk management and
statement of assurance processes. Primary responsibility for overseeing the governance
process is the responsibiiity of the Audit Committee as a standing committee of Council. The
role of the Audit Committee extends to receiving reports from the Council’s internal and
external auditors to ensure that any issues raised are subject to due consideration and are
addressed by officers on a timely basis. In considering this Annual Governance Statement,
the Audit Committee have considered the review of the governance framework and system
of internal controls prepared by the Chief Executive.

The following process has been applied in maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the
governance fromework:

o the Members: A committee structure is in place within Council which provides
elected Members with a democratic mechanism by which 1o approve and scrutinise
Councit Business. Positions of responsibility and Committee Members are appointed
as per the Local Government Act (NI) 2014 and are reflective of the broad political
makeup of the Council as elected.

The main decision-making body is full Council of elected Members who are ultimately
responsible for ensuring effective governance arrangements are in place for Council
to achieve its goals and objectives. Council meets monthly in statutory meetings.
Council has established sub-Committees of Council to consider in further detail its
operations in line with specific areas of responsibility, as set out in the Constitution.
These Committees of elected members are informed by Council Officers.

Council business is governed by Council Standing Orders and Committee Terms of
Reference 1o ensure that the transaction of the business of Council and its
Committees is properly regulated and conducted in an efficient, fair and legal
manner.

» fhe Senior Officers: The Chief Executive ensures that all Council services and activities
are delivered in accordance with the aims of the Council's Corporate Plan. The Chief
Executive is supported by a Senior Management Team who meet weekly to monitor
strategic direction and good governance across the District. During 2020/21 a
meeting of the Corporate Management team occurred on a more regular basis due
to COVID19, however the meeting is normally monthly. Directors meet regularly with
senior members of their Directorates to ensure that all staff are aware of Council's
priorities and that risks are being appropriately managed.

Quarterly Assurance Statements are completed by Assistant Directors and Directors to
give the Chief Executive assurance over the controls that are in place. The Assurance
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Statements also make the Chief Executive aware of any of the risks arising which may
have a negative impact on the Council.

The Audit Commiltee: The Audit Committee provides an important source of
assurance to those charged with governance about the Council's arangements for
managing risk, maintaining an effective control environment, and reporting on
financial and other performance. The Audit Committee has an Independent
Chairperson and met on four occasions during 2020/21. The Audit Committee Terms
of Reference were revised in April 2021 and sets out the purpose and the roles and
responsibilities of Committee.

The effectiveness of Audit Committee was reviewed at the Committee on 220 April
2021. This review was completed using the National Audit Office Self-Assessment
Checklist (September 2017).

The Committee was satisfied with its overall performance when compared against
the checklist. The NAQ checklist is the benchrnark for best practice. The Audit
Committee Annual report 2020/21 was presented to the July 2021 Audit Committee
to support the completion of the Annual Governance Statement.

By Internal Audit: The Internal Audit function is carmied out by an independent firm in
accordance with Public Sector Intemal Audit Standards. It provides assurance and
adbvisory services to assist Council achieve its objectives and improve the
effectiveness of internal control, risk management and governance processes.

Eight internal audit assignments were caried out in 2020/21 as per the agreed
Internal audit plan for 2020/21. internal Audit also carried out a follow up review of
the 2019/20 recommendations.

In addition, during the pre-meeting of the July 2020 Audit Committee, the Chief
Executive Informed Elected Members that given the high values of cost involved in
the use of single tender action arangements in Council, that she had commissioned
the Council's Internal Auditors to undertake an investigation into the Council’s
approach to, and explanations for, the use of single tender actions. The final report
was issued on 1 December 2020 and 21 recommendations were agreed by
management.

The overall internal audit opinion for 2020/21 was satisfactory, withstanding the
significant issues identified in fleet management procedures, fuel management
procedures and the use if single tender actions within Council.

Other explicit review / assurance mechanisms:

o Health and Safety: By reviews of Health and Safety by professionally qualified
officers, the Corporate Health and Safety Committee, and varicus Health and
Safety sub committees.

o Risk Management: Risk Management is embedded across all activities of the
Council and is a continuously evolving process, which is monitcred closely by
the Audit Services Manager. The Corporate Risk Register is presented quarterly
to both SMT and the Audit Committee.

o External Funding: External funding throughout the year is subject to
independent audits from the relevant funders i.e. European Court of Auditors,
Government Departments, SEUPB.

o Local Government Audit: Work carried out by the Local Government Auditor
during 2019/20 is also used by the Council as an additional assurance
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mechanism. The Council’s Performance Improverment Plan has also been
externally audited by the NIAC and received a satisfactory Assurance rating
in 2018/19.

o National Fraud Initiative (NFI} - Data Matching Exercise: The Council continues
to conform 1o the requirements of the NIAO NFI exercise. This matches
electronic data within and between public and private sector bodies to
prevent and detect fraud. Data matching compares sets of datq, such as
payroll, pensions and trade creditors’ records of a body against other records
held by the same or another body. The latest batches of data matches were
released by the NIAO in February 2021 and work relating to the review and
investigation of high risk matches is now complete. The outcome of the
matches testing was reported to the September 2021 Audit Committee.

The Accounting Officer has also been advised on the review of effectiveness of the
governance framework by the Audit Committee and a plan to address any weaknesses and
ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.

Update on Significant Governance issves that were declared in 2019/20

Eight issues were declared in last year's Governance Statement and seven of these continue
to be declared as issues in this year's statement {Procurement and Contract Management, IT
Transformation Project (incorporating cyber risk}, Economic and Political climate
{incorporating NI Protocol), Belfast City Region deal, Planning backlog, absenteeismm and
COVID19).

An update on the remaining governance issues from 2019/20 is provided below:

1. Newry Rainbow Community Grant Funding

Council awarded £125,000 to Newry Rainbow Community to fund the UK and freland
Pride Event, which was hosted in Newry in August 2019,

Significant governance issues arose while verifying the first tranche of £60,000 against
the Letter of Offer. Council’'s Fraud Response Group convened and brought a report
to the SP&R Committee highlighting the concerns Officers uncovered. Council
reversed the decision to award any further funding o Newry Rainbow Community.

When assessing all information available, an apparent overclaim for the previous
year's event by Newry Rainbow Community was discovered. Cfficers have sought to
reclaim this money on behalf of the ratepayer. This case is with PSNI and they are
taking forward the investigation, however this was delayed due to COVID19. PSNI
contacted Council in April 2021 to confirm that the investigation was to recommence
following relaxations in COVIDI? restrictions.

2. Internal Audit - Contract Management

In 2019/20 the 'Contract Management' internal audit review received a limited
assurance. Internal Audit concluded that there are number of key controls missing
from the Council’s systems for Contract management. Specifically, there is a need to:

o focus management's priorities on the completeness and accuracy of the
contract register;
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o ensure that market tested contracts/procurements are in place to support
relevant spend in the Council;

o establish a separate contract management policy:

o review the approval mechanism for STAs to consider whether spend is likely fo
be repeated and in these instances whether a contract should be put in
place instead; and

o toensure performance reviews and post project evaluations are in place. Qur
review also noted a need for dedicated contract management training for all
relevant Officers.

Significant progress has been made and out of the 14 recormmendations made, 4
have been fully implemented, 7 partially implemented and 3 have not yet been
implemented. Further detail provided within the significant governance issues for
2020/21.

Significant Governance Issves in 2020/21

The significant governance issues for 2020/21 were identified through the review of significant risks
within the Corporate Risk Register for the year ending 31 March 2021, consideration of significant
events / issues, internal / external audit reports and a review of the Directorate Assurance
Statements at year end.

Internal Audit conducted eight reviews during 2020/21. Six Internal Audit Reviews received a
satisfactory assurance rating and two reports received a limited assurance rating. In agreement with
the Audit Committee, Internal Audit also undertook an additional advisory review on Single Tender
Actions and the Council’s contract mapping exercise. The final report was issued on 1% December
2020 and 21 recommendations were agreed by management.

The two reports which received a limited Assurance Rating were as follows;

1. Fleet Management - Internal Audit concluded that there remain several key controls absent
from the Council’s internal control system for fleet management. Specifically, that
procedures relating to driver defect reports, safety inspections, routine maintenance checks
and the Council’s grey fleet are not being followed and there is a need to provide clarity on a
number of the current practices. Internal audit also noted that there has been limited
progress on the implementation of recommendations in a previously agreed internal audit
report and limited evidence that the implementation status of these recommendations is
being monitored by Council. An update on progress was brought to the Audit Committee in
July 2021.

2. Fuel Management — Internal audit concluded that there are a number of key controls absent
from the Council's systems for fuel management. Specifically, that there is a need to: clarify
roles and responsibilities in respect of fuel management and agree the draft Fuel
Management Policy and Procedure; establish a clear process for fuel stock counting and
reconciliations of fuel receipts and issues; document the physical security arrangements in
place for fuel held at the Greenbank and Strangford Road Depots; and consider whether
there should be additional fuel cards issued to replace the use of the forecourt sign off
sheets. An update is due to be brought to Audit Committee in September 2021.

Internal Audit also concluded that the Council need to review the costs and henefits of the
system-based controls and reporting functionality of the Jigsaw software being used as
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intended (without manual workarounds) to provide a more accurate management tool. They
also noted insufficient progress on the implementation of key recommendations made in
the Audit Services Manager’'s fuel audit report, dated November 2018.

Internal Audit also undertook the follow up review of recommendations made in the 2019/20
internal audit reviews including the advisory review of Health and Safety. The review identified that,
out of the 84 accepted recommendations, 24 recommendations were fully implemented, 24
recommendations were partially implemented, and 20 recommendations were not implemented. Of
the remaining 16 recommendations, 2 recommendations were no longer accepted and there were
14 recommendations which were it was not possible to test implementation, due mainly to
restrictions arising from the Council’'s management of the COVID19 pandemic.

Internal Audit’s Annual Opinion during the period from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021, was that the
Council's systems in relation to internal control, risk management and governance were, in general,
adequate and operated effectively and can provide satisfactory assurance in relation to the effective
and efficient achievement of the Council’s objectives withstanding the limited reports identified
above within the Neighbourhood Services Directorate.

It should aiso be highlighted that over the last number of years, there has been a period of
significant change in senior management positions within the Neighbourhood Services Directorate.
Council have recently recruited a temporary Assistant Director of Waste Management {June 2021)
and the publicly advertised Director recruitment concluded in May 2021. There will be an acting
Director of Neighbourhood Services for one year.

The Audit Services Manager will continue to follow up on the legacy internal audit recommendations
which have not yet been implemented. The progress on the implementation on internal audit
recommendations will be reported quarterly at the Audit Committee along with an update on
outstanding external audit recommendations.

The following governance issues have been identified for the year ended 31* March 2021:
1. Procurement and Contract Management

Procurement has remained a significant risk within the Council’s Corporate Risk Register over the
past number of years. The control environment within Council has improved significantly over the
last number of years;

¢ The Newry, Mourne and Down District Council Procurement Policy and Procedures was
approved by the SP&R committee on 14 December 2017 and subsequently ratified by
Council on 8 January 2018. Business Case templates and procedures were approved in
February 2018 by SMT. The suite of documents was updated again on 23 June 2020.

e InJune 2018, a procurement expert delivered training to relevant staff. The training covered
drafting business cases, drafting tender documents, tender evaluation and training on the
Council’s e-procurement system.

e A procurement training schedule was delivered to all staff. This commenced in February
2019 and was completed in May 2019. The five separate sessions targeted officers,
proportionate to the value of procurement exercises they regularly undertake.

o Internal Audit completed an audit of the Procurement policy and procedures in 2017/18,
with a further audit of compliance with the new policy and procedures in 2018/19. Both
reviews received a satisfactory level of assurance.
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e Significant work has been undertaken to review all significant contract spend by Council and
to ensure appropriate contracts are in place and formulate a fully operational contract
register for future use by Council.

Even though considerable progress has been made, we are still highlighting procurement as a
significant issue as the policy and procedures continue to imbed. However, the main concern going
forward is contract management.

The Contract Management Internal Audit in May 2020 had a limited assurance rating. The report
stated that there are number of key controis missing from the Council’s systems for Contract
management. SMT were concerned with the high level of spend during the first quarter of 2020/21
requiring Single Tender Action Approval. SMT directed CMT to ensure competitive procurement
processes are put in place immediately for all spend where legacy contracts have lapsed for each of
their service areas.

In July 2020, the Chief Executive informed Elected Members that given the high values of cost
involved in the use of STA arrangements in Council that she had commissioned the Council’s Internal
Auditors to undertake an investigation into the Council’s approach to, and explanations for, the use
of single tender actions. The scope of the review also extended to considering the contract mapping
exercise being completed by the Council’s Procurement Team. The final report was issued on 1%
December 2020 and 21 recommendations were agreed by management.

Following the STA review, all Directorates have prepared Procurement Action Plans to provide an
overview of all STAs and why they are necessary and when a procurement competition/contract will
be put in place. These Procurement Action Plans went to each of the Home Committees in January
and February 2021. These Directorate Action Plans will form the basis of an overarching
Procurement Plan for the organisation, which will be monitored by the Audit Committee going
forward.

A new Procurement to Pay System is currently being implemented within Council. It is expected the
‘go live date’ will be November 2021. The new system will facilitate three-way matching and will
offer greater functionality with monitoring contract spend.

2. IT Transformation Project

Council is currently undertaking an IT transformation project and considerable progress has been
made to date. This is a long-term project and until a time when the IT Strategy is fully implemented,
we are actively working at managing risk in this area and ensuring our current |T systems and IT
security is sufficiently robust to meet the needs of the organisation.

A key focus for Council going forward is the IT Secuirty/Cyber risk. A new risk was included within the
Corporate Risk Register in April 2021; ‘Risk of a cyber security event causing significant operational,
financial and reputational damage to the Council’. Due to COVID19, the majority of Council Officers
are remote users and are relying on their home internet services for remote working, consequently
the IT security risks are enhanced.

Council are currently progressing several actions to mitigate the IT Secuirty/Cyber risk as best we
can;
e Development of Service Area Business Continuity Plans with a focus on cyber
security/disaster recovery;
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+ Implementation of additional security tools including multifactor authentication, conditional
access and modern authentication where possible and appropriate; and

e Increase User resilience by continuing to engage with and follow guidance from the National
Cyber Security Centre (NCSC). Council will also continue to use Active Cyber Defence tools
from NCSC and supplement with vulnerability scans, actioning recommendations resulting
therefrom where possible and appropriate.

3. Economic and Political Climate including the NI Protocol

The financial landscape for the council is likely to remain challenging for the foreseeable future. The
added uncertainty brought about by the exit from the European Union and the implementation of
the NI Protocol will only serve to compound these issues. There is a risk that funding reductions may
continue beyond this point.

The COVID19 outbreak will also have a significant financial impact on the council in 2021/22 with the
impact then likely to be felt in future years. The council began to experience the impact of the
outbreak in March 2020 when several front-line service facilities were closed. Consequently, the
council will suffer significant reductions in income in 2021/22 and beyond due to Government
restrictions and guidelines. For further details see Significant Governance issue number 8.

The Council continues to face a range of significant budget pressures including general inflation, cost
pressures in waste and recycling, increases in demand for everyday services as the population grows,
and increases in core costs such as wage increases, the naticnal living wage and pension
contributions.

The major external influence on the Council’s future financial security will be the implementation of
the NI Protocol following the end of the current ‘grace periods’. Whilst still unclear what the local
implications will be, the impact of leaving the European Union (EU) may lead to increased instability
and uncertainty in respect of the financial context for councils and regions.

Warrenpoint Port is one of the three main points of entry for goods entering NI from GB. On the 1
January 2021 GB will become a Third Country and in future high-risk foods imported into NI from GB
will be subject to Agri-Food import checks at point of entry. Required checks are being completed at
Warrenpoint Port on an on-going basis by trained and authorised staff, working flexible shifts
aligned with changeable sailing arrival times.

The EU are conducting a planned audit of the ports in NI, including Warrenpoint, from 21-30 June
2021. Threat assessments continue to be carried out by the PSNI on a fortnightly basis. Regular
meetings with relevant partners, DAERA, FSA, Border force, Seatruck, Warrenpoint Port, to continue
to share learning and work through operational issues as they arise. Officers continue to contribute
to the Project Steering group, led by DAERA, to deliver the required expanded checking capability at
NI POE’s; including People, Process, IT and infrastructure to facilitate the free flow of existing trade
post transition as the NI Protocol is implemented on a phased basis.

The Special EU Programmes Body (SEUPB) have confirmed that arrangements are in place,
supported by the EU, UK and frish Governments, providing for the continuation of the current PEACE
IV and INTERREG V Programmes. As regards a future PEACE PLUS Programme which will include both
PEACE and INTERREG activities, a considerable amount of preparatory work, research and
stakeholder engagement has taken place and SEUPB are committed to delivering PEACE PLUS by
2021.
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Officers have been working closely with our businesses and stakeholders to prepare, as far as
possible for Brexit. Officers have been using social media and other business networks to raise
awareness among local businesses of the importance of acting now in Brexit preparation. A Brexit
information page has been established on NMD Business website sign posting businesses to the
main sources of information, the availability of the trader support service and financial assistance
available via i.e. Intertrade Ireland for Brexit preparedness.

It is too early to understand the full implications of Brexit on jobs and investment in the District. The
Council established a Brexit Member’s forum in March 2018. The forum consists of Senior Officers
and Members. Their role is to create contingency plans to monitor and take actions to reduce the
risks arising due to the current levels of uncertainty. The outcomes of the Forum meetings are
reported to the ERT Committee. Officers are also continuing to work across Council practitioner
groups in areas of procurement, waste, finance and legal to ascertain the impact of Brexit and will
plan for any impacts once known.

4. Belfast Region City Deal (BRCD)

The Belfast City Deal is a 10-year investment, with a vision of creating 20,000 new and better paid
jobs. This investment will ensure that as a Council we can take forward and implement strategic
pricrities, which will position our district as a key investment location and visitor attraction, while
providing stimulus for new and better employment opportunities for all.

In total, £850m has been secured to deliver the investment. The City Deal investment in
infrastructure, regeneration and tourism projects will also help the region’s economic recovery from
the effects of COVID1S.

However, there is still some uncertainty around funding for specific projects until the individual
business cases are fully approved by the necessary partners. There is a risk to Council that there
could be a shortfall in funding for a specific project. Although Belfast City Council are taking the lead
in administering the programme, there are substantial running costs which are shared between
participating Councils which could also have an impact on the overall funding available for key
projects.

To help mitigate this funding risk, NMDDC have governance structures in place via Project Steering
Boards, which will have over sight on the design, development and implementation of the
regeneration and tourism capital projects which Council are the lead on. Council decisions on City
Deal initiatives will be tabled at the ERT Committee, which will be supplemented with a focused City
Deal councillor reference group. At a regional leve! Advisory Boards have been established under
each of the City Deal pillars, and NMDDC officials sit on the Executive Board, relevant pillar boards,
Finance Directors Group and other groups as relevant to NMDDC's projects.

As the BRCD project progresses it is essential that governance structures are kept under review to
ensure they reflect the changing demands as projects move from planning to implementation.

A Governance Review of the NCCR Programme was carried out by Council’s internal auditors during
August 2021, following a number of concerns raised by Members. The review concluded that the
internal auditors do not believe the concerns raised by Members should impact on the Council
progressing the Regeneration Programme,



5. Planning Backlog

The failure to deliver timely planning decisions is highlighted as a risk within the Corporate Risk
Register. Internal Audit completed an audit of the planning function during 2017/18 and this
received a limited assurance rating. At the 15 June 2021 all 8 recommendations had been fully
implemented.

Senior Management formally commenced a Service Improvement Programme with the appointment
of an experienced planning project consultant in January 2020. The aim of the Improvement
Programme is to review and refine processes and procedures where necessary, to review team
arrangements and to improve the responsiveness of the Development Management Service,
including the time taken to determine planning applications and to bring enforcement mattersto a
satisfactory conclusion.

Before COVID-19, significant progress was being made in terms of service and performance
improvement. The pandemic has introduced several additional layers of challenge to the
Development Management Service which did not exist 12 months ago.

The number of planning applications received by the Council did not subside during the pandemic
and the total number is greater than 2019/20. During 2020-21, the Council received 1,645 planning
applications which is the highest across Northern Ireland. Given the high number of planning
applications submitted, combined with the challenges posed by the pandemic, it was not possible to
reduce the overall number planning applications within the system during 2020-21. Through the
Performance Improvement Plan, the Council has agreed and published targets for improvement in
2021-22. It should however be noted that, despite the challenges the Planning Department faced
during 2020-21, the average processing times for local and major planning applications improved
when compared to 2019-20.

The number of applications in the system for 12 months or more increased from 183 in 2019-20 to
195 in 2020-21 and the Council has set a target of 150 in 2021-22. The number of enforcements
cases in the system for 12 months or more reduced from 620 in 2019-20 to 546 in 2020-21 and the
Council has set a target of 450 in 2021-22. Annual figures provided by the Department for
Infrastructure in relation to the statutory performance indicators and standards indicate a reduction
in the average processing times of local applications, from 20.6 weeks in 2015-20 to 19 weeks in
2020-21 (regional average is 17.8 weeks), and major planning applications, from 94 weeks in 2019-
20 to 64.6 weeks in 2020-21 (regional average is 61.4 weeks). Whilst the percentage of enforcement
cases processed within 39 weeks also improved from 36.2% in 2019-20 to 40.9% in 2020-21, it
remains well below the current regional average of 69.9% .

Reducing the number of live planning applications within the system and the caseloads of Officers is
the key challenge for the next phase of the Improvement Programme. The changes implemented will
set the foundations for a more modern, efficient, resilient and responsive Development
Management Service in the longer term. They will be subject to ongoing review and they will be
complemented by further changes in line with the Improvement Strategy when conditions allow.

6. Absenteeism
In July 2019, The SMT decided to include a new Corporate Risk in relation to absence management.

Corporate Risk 10 is currently an amber risk; ‘Failure to adequately manage sickness absence
resulting in delays and an inability to deliver Council services’.
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The Council’s level of sickness absence is currently the greater than the Local Government average
of 13.9 days, this was highlighted in the Local Government Audit Report 2020. Management are
highlighting this on the Corporate Risk Register to put in place actions to bring the average number
of days down to an acceptable level.

For the twelve-month period ending 31 March 2021, days lost due to sickness decreased by 2,476 to
12,107.5; compared to 14,583.5 for the year ended 31 March 2020; representing an overall decrease
of 16.98%. Absence Management statistics are now provided to the SP&R Committee on a quarterly
basis.

As well as reminding Line Managers of their duties in relation to absence management, Council
introduced a Managing Attendance Procedure. On 12 March 2020 the SP&R Committee agreed to
approve the recommended policy be adopted by Council for implementation. The policy replaced six
legacy absence management policies which were previously in operation and became effective on 1
April 2020.

Internal Audit completed an assurance-based review on ‘HR Policies — Managing Attendance at
Work’ in April 2021. Internal concluded that that the Council has in place a documented Managing
Attendance Policy and a Managing Attendance Procedure, both dated February 2020. This Policy and
Procedure supersedes all previous attendance management procedures in operation within the
Council with effect from 1 April 2020 and is applicable to all employees. Internal Audit were content
that the Policy and Procedure documents provide an adequate set of control mechanisms for
employees and line managers to manage attendance at work.

7. COVID19

The current year has been unprecedented. The impact of COVID19 has significantly impacted on
Council’s operations and finances in the current year. The future impact of COVID19 on operations,
on our rate base and on our finances is uncertain, and many assumptions are included in our
budgets for 2021-22.

Council is continuing to follow government and public health advice. Council response to the
COVID19 situation aims to ensure we will continue to maintain a high level of corporate governance
and compliance with existing policies and procedures.

The financial impact of COVID19 is reported regularly to Members via the SP&R Committee by the
Director of Corporate Services. There were significant income losses following the enforced closures
of leisure and tourism facilities, trade waste and car parking, as well as the ongoing fixed costs of
Council (payroll, utilities etc) were highlighted as putting pressure onto the budgets agreed when the
rate was set for the 2020-21 year, as well as noting additional costs incurred by Council as a direct
result of COVID19.

However, it was also noted that there was opportunity for Council to achieve costs savings in certain
areas, as well as to avail of a number of Government schemes to assist financial pressures.

The longer-term impact of the COVID19 pandemic on Council’s financial position cannot be advised
until the various financial assistance income streams are confirmed, until we have more clarity as to
when we will be able to open up our facilities, and until the local and global impact of the pandemic
is understood. It is reasonable to anticipate at this stage that Council will not be as financially stable,
with the same level of usable reserves and the same access to external borrowings while the
pandemic is still evolving.
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The full financial implications of the COVID19 pandemic will significantly impact the future of
Council. The impact of COVID19 on Council’s risk register has been assessed by SMT and will remain
a key focus for the organisation as we work to recover from the pandemic as a District. The
assurance reporting templates were also updated to ensure the effects of the pandemic were
captured for each Directorate.

We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to further enhance our
governance arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps will address the need for
improvements that were identified in our review of effectiveness and will monitor their
implementation and operation as part of our next annual review.

sones Eotly Moo

Date 24 September 2021
CHAIR

Signed
Date 24 September 2021
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

on behalf of Newry, Mourne and Down District Council
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REMUNERATION REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
INTRODUCTION

The Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015 require larger local government bodies
to prepare a remuneralion report as part of the statement of accounts.

ALLOWANCE AND REMUNERATION ARRANGEMENTS
COUNCILLORS

Allowances are payable by councils 10 councillors and committee memibers under Part 3 of the Local Government
Finance Act {Northern Ireland] 2011 and The Local Government (Payments to Councillors) Regulations (Northern Ireland)
2012, which came into operation on 1 April 2012,

Guidance and determinations on Councillors’ Allowances applicable from 1 April 2020 were issued by the Department for
Communities on 3 Aprit 2020 {Circular LG 08/2020]. Details of the allowances paid to individual councillors are published
on council websites.

Following locatl elections on 2 May 2019, 462 councillors were elected fo the 11 new councils for a four year term. Newry,
Mourne and Down District Council had 41 councillors in 2020/2021.

SENIOR EMPLOYEES

The remuneration of senior employees employed by the Council is determined by the Council in line with that determined
by the Naticnal Joint Council {NJC) for Local Government Services. Senior staff are those staff who are members of the
Executive Management Team/Senior Management Team.

Council appoiniments of employees are made in accordance with the Local Government Staff Commissions' Code of
Procedures on Recruitment and Selection, which requires appoiniment to be on merit and on the basis of tair and open
competition,

Unless otherwise staled below, the officials covered by this report hold appoiniments which are open-ended.
INDEPENDENT MEMBER - AUDIT COMMITTEE

Brona Slevin is an Independent Member and Chairperson of the Audit Commiltee. The role is to help promote the highesi
standards in the financial management of the Council and thereby ensure the accountability of public funds. Thisis a 4
year temporary appointment from 15 April 2019 until 31 March 2023, A payment of £500 is paid per meeting {this includes
preparation time of £250 and £250 for the meeting) plus fravel and expenses. In 2020/2021 she was paid £2,142.84
meeling allowance plus £461.50 fravel costs.



ALLOWANCES PAID TO COUNCILLORS

The total amount paid to Councillors by way of allowances, under Part 3 of the Local Government Fingnce Act (Northem
Ireland} 2011 and the Local Government (Payments to Councillors) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2012 was:

Table 1: Total Aliowances paid to councillors (audited information)

Allowance

Total Allowances

202072021

2019/2020

Number of Councilllors

Total Allowances

Number of Councillors

£ receiving the Allowance £ receiving the
Allowance

|Basic Allowance 634,926 42 614,592 55
Special 76,334 29 73,169 29
Responsibility

Allrvarrineo

Chairperson 20,165 2 20,165 2
Allowance

Vice Chairperson 6,293 2 6,293 2
Allowance

Mileage Allowance 7.096 18 60,303 45
Public Transport 508 2 6,072 10
and Other Travel

Incidentals

Subsistence 150 4 4,414 10
Courses/ 8,175 & 4,533 8
Conferences Visits

{regisiration &

joining fees)

Dependents’ Carers 2,283 1 449 1
Allowance

TOTAL ALLOWANCES 755,930 - 789,990 -

Details of the allowances paid to individual councillors in 2020/2021 are published on the council website at
www.newrymournedown.org/councillors-allowances-and-expenses
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REMUNERATION OF SENIOR EMPLOYEES

The remuneration of senior employees covers the Executive Management Team/Senior Management Team. The following
table provides details of the remuneration paid to senior employees:

Table 2: Remuneration (including satary)[cudited information]

Officers 2020/2021 2019/2020
Salary (Fun Bonus Benefits In Total Salary (Full Bonus Benefits in Total
year equivalent | Payments | kind (to year equivalent | Pagymenis | kind (to
In brackets nearest £100) In brackets necrest
where where £100)
applicable) applicable)
£'000 £ £'000
£
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
25-100 95-100
Marie Ward {110~ 115 full {1N0-115
Clerk & Chief Executive JES Ly ) = IS year ) Y full year
equivalent) equivalent)
Michael Lipsett
Director of Active & 85-90 - 100 85-90 85-90 - 100 85-90
Healthy Communities
Dorinnia Carville
Director of Corporate 85-90 - 100 85-90 85-90 - 100 85-90
Services
Roland Moore
Director of 45- 50 (85 - 50- 55 (85 -
Neighbourhood 90 full year - 100 20 full year 80-85 - 400 80-85
Services equivalent) equivalent}
{Until 02/11/2020)

Conor Mallon 70-75 706-75
Director of En.terprlse, 85 - 90 ) 100 85 - 90 (80 - 85 full ) 100 (80 - 85 full
Regeneration & year year

Tourism equivalent} equivalent)
Jonathon McBride
Director of 70-75(80- 70-75(80 -
Neighbourhood 85 full year - 200 85 full year
Services equivalent) equivalent)
{From 02/11/2020)




Councils are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the highest paid member of the Executive
Management Team/Senior Management Team and the median remuneration of the Council's workforce.

The banded remuneration of the highest paid member of the Execulive Management Team/Senior Management Team in
the financial year 2020/2021 was £115k - £120k. This was 5.2 times the median remuneration of the workforce, which was
£23,080.

Table 3: Relationship between the remuneration of the highest pald member of the Executive Management Team/Senlor
Management Team and the median remuneration of the Councils workforce (audited information)

l 2020/2021 2019/2020
Salary Band of Highest Paid member of the £115k - £120k £110k - £115k
Executive Management Team/ Senior
Management Team
Median Total Remuneration £23,080 £22,292
|Ratio 5.20 5.00

In 2020/2021. no employees received remuneration in excess of the highest paid member of the Executive Management
Tearn/Senior Management Team.

Total remuneration includes salary, bonus payments and benefits in kind.

Salary
“Salary” includes gross salary, overtime, and any gratia payments.

Bonus Payments
Bonus payments are based on performance levels attained and are made as part of the appraisal process. Bonuses relate
to the performance in the year in which they become payable to the individual. There were ne bonuses due in 2020/2021.

Benefits in Kind
The monetary value of benefits in kind covers any benefits provided by the employer and freoted by HM Revenue and
Customs as a taxable emelument,

Exit Packages for staff
There were no exit packages 2020/2021.

Table 4: Exit Packages In 2020/2021 {audited Information)

2050/2021 2019/2020
Number of Number of Total Total Cost of Number of Number of Total Total Cost of
Compulsory Other Number of | Packagesin | Compulsory Other Number of | Packages in
Severance Redundancles| departures Exit each Cost |Redundancles| departures Exit each Cost
Package Cost Band ogreed |Packagesin Band agreed Packages Bend
each Cost £000 in each £'000
Band Cost Band
£0 - £20,000
J£20.001 - £40.000 2 2 71,419
[g40.001 - £60.000
|£40.001 - £30.000 | 1 71.168]
£80,001 - £100,000
|£100.001 - £150.000 ] 1 146,340]
£150,001 - £200,000
Total 0 0 0 | 0 4 4 288,927
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Pension Benefits

The Local Govermnment Pension Scheme {Northemn Ireland) (the Scheme) which is a funded defined benefit pension
scheme, which provides retirement benefits for council employees on a “career average revalved earnings” basis from 1
April 2015. Prior to that date benefits were built up on a “final salary” basis.

From 1 April 2015, a member builds up retirement pension at the rate of 1/4%th pensionable pay for each year. Pension
benefits in refation to membership between 1 April 2009 and 31 March 2015 were built up at the rate of 1/60th
pensionable pay for each year of membership. There is no automatic lump sum provided in respect of membership after
31 March 2009. Pension benefits in relation to any membership before 1 April 2009 were built up at the rate of 1/80th
{pension} and 3/80ths (tax-free lump sum) of pensionable pay for each year of membership up to 31 March 2009. At
retirement, members may give up some pension for additional lump sum, subject to HM Revenue and Customs (HMRC)
limits. The conversion rale is £12 additional lump sum for every £1 of pension given up.

Councillors have been able to join the Scheme since May 2011. The Scheme application is modified to reflect the fact
that councillors hold an elected office. Councillor members have always accrued pension on a career average basis,
Prior to 1 April 2015 pension was accrued at a rate of 1/60th and thereafter at a rate of 1/49th.

The Scheme is funded by contributions made by both employees/councillors and employers. Prior to 1 April 2009,
member's conftribution rates were fixed at 6% of their pensionable remuneration {except for those who were entitled to
contribute to the Scheme at 5% before 1 February 2003 and have remained in continuous employment). Tiered member
coniribution rates, determined by the whole-time equivalent rate of pay, were intfroduced from 1 April 2009. From 1 April
2015, the member contribution rates are determined on the actual rale of pay.

The ranges for the bands for tiered contribution rates are revised by the Department for Communities in Aprif each year in
accordance with the increase applied to a pension in payment. The bands, effective from 1 April 2020, were as follows:

Table 5: Employee Contribuiion Rates

Band Range Employee Coniribution Rate
Main Section 50/50 Section
1 £0- £15,000 5.5% 2.75%
2 £15.001 - £22,900 58% 2.90%
3 £22,901 - £38,300 6.5% 3.25%
4 £38,301- £46,400 6.8% 3.40%
5 £44,401 - £91,900 8.5% 4.25%
4 More than £91,900 10.5% 5.25%
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Employers' contribulion rates are determined by the fund's actuary every three years ot the triennial valuation, A formai
trienniol actuarial valuation of the Fund as at 31 March 2019 was caried cut in 2019/2020 and set the employer
contribution rates for the 3 years commencing T April 2020 as follows:

Table é: Employer Contribution Rates

Year Employer Contiibution Rate
1 April 2020 - 31 March 2021 19.50%
1 April 2021 - 31 March 2022 19.50%
1 April 2022 - 31 March 2023 19.50%

The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations (Northern Ireland)] 2014 were made on 27 june 2014 and The Local
Government Pension Scheme {Amendment and Transitional Provisions) Regulations {Northern Ireland) 2014 were made on

30 June 2014. Both sets of regulations are effective from 1 April 2015.

Councillors have been able 1o join the Scheme since May 2011 and therefore have not accrued significant benefits thus
far. However, the in-year pension contributions made by the Council for all councillors during 2020/2021 was £137.217.25.

The value of pension benefils of the most senior management of the Council accrued during the year was as follows:

Table 7: Pension Benefits of senior staff in 2020/202) {audited information)

Officers Accrued Pension at  Real increase in pension| CETV at CETV at Real increase in CETV
pension age as at and related lump sum at| 31/03/2021 |31/03/2020
31/3/11 pension age £'000
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Marle Ward
Clerk & Chief 20 - 25 no lump sum 4.5 - 5.0 no lump sum 243 207 43
Executive
Michael Lipseit
Direclor of Active | 40 - 45 plus lump sum of | 2.5 - 3.0 plus lump sum 831 769 51
I3 Healthy 75-80 of 1.5-20
Dorinnla Carville
Director of 20 - 25 no lump sum 2.0- 2.5 no lump sum 235 207 20
Corporate Services
Roland Moore
Director of
Neighbourhood 20-25 ph]JS Iu]n;p sumof | 10- I.Sf%llas IL(;n;p sum 269 253 10
Services {Until - orgL-L.
02/11/2020}
Conor Mallon
Director of
Enterprise,
Regeneration & 5-10 no lump sum 1.5 - 2.0 no lump sum 40 39 14
Tourism
Jonathon McBride
Director of
Neighbourhood | 20 - 25 plus lump sum of 1 2.0 - 2.5 plus lump sum 271 238 30
Services 15-20 of20-25
(From 02/11/2020)
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The Cash Equivalent Transter Valuve (CETV)

This is the actuarially assessed capitalised value of the pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular
point in time. The benefits valued are the member's accrued benefits and any contingent spouse’s pension payable from
the scheme. Il is a payment made by a pension scheme or arangement to secure pension benefits in another pension
scheme or arangement when the member leaves a scheme and chooses 10 transfer the pension benefits they have
accrued in their former scheme. The pension figures shown relate 1o the benefits that the individual has accrued as a
consequence of their total membership of the pension scheme, not just their service in @ senior capacity to which
disclosure applies. CETVs are calculated in accordance with The Cccupational Pension Schemes (Transfer values)
(Amendment] Regulations and do not take account of any actual or potential reduction to benefits resulting from Lifetime
Allowonce Tax which may be due when pension benefits are taken.

The real increase in the value of the CETV

This reflects the increase in CETY effectively funded by the employer. It takes account of the increase in accrued pension
due to inftation, contiibutions paid by the employee {including the vatue of any benefits fransferred from another pension
schemeqr grrangement)] and uses common market valuation factors for the start and end of the period.

Chief Execulive
24 September 2021



Certificate of the Chief Financial Officer

| certify that:

{a) the Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2021 on pages 51 to 54 has been prepared in the form
directed by the Department for Communities and under the accounting policies set out on pages 55 to 72.

{b) in my opinion the Statement of Accounts gives a frue and fair view of the income and expendilure and cash
flows for the financial year and the financial position as at the end of the financial year ending 31 March 2021.

[
Chief Financial Officer

Date 24 September 2021

Council Approval of Statement of Accounts

These accounts were approved by resolution of the Council on 23 September 2021.

Chairperson

Date 24 September 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF NEWRY, MOURNE AND DOWN
DISTRICT COUNCIL

Opinion on financial statements

| have audited the financial statements of Newry, Mourne and Down District Council for the year
ended 31 March 2021 under the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005. The financial
statements comprise the Movement in Reserves Statement, Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, Balance Sheet, Cash flow Statement, and the related notes including
significant accounting policies. These financial statements have been prepared under the
accounting policies set out within them, The financial reporting framework that has been applied
in their preparation is applicable law and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting on
the United Kingdom supparted by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted
by the European Union.,

I have also audited the information in the Remuneration Report that is described in that report as
having been audited.

In my opinion the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view, in accordance with relevant legal and statutory requirements
and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020-21,
of the financial position of Newry, Mourne and Down District Council as at 31 March 2021
and its income and expenditure for the year then ended; and

* have been properly prepared in accordance with the Local Government (Accounts and
Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland} 2015 and the Department for Communities’
directions issued thereunder,

Basis for opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) (UK). My
responsihilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements section of this certificate. My staff and | are independent of
Newry, Mourne and Down District Council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the
Financial Reporting Council’s Revised Ethical Standard 2019, and have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 1 believe that the audit evidence
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, | have concluded that Newry, Mourne and Down District
Council’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is appropriate.

Based on the work | have performed, | have not identified any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Newry,
Mourne and Down District Council's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at |least
twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

The going concern basis of accounting for Newry, Mourne and Down District Council is adopted in
consideration of the requirements set out in the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting, which require entities to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements where it anticipated that the services which they provide
will continue into the future.
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My responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Chief Financial Officer with respect to going
concern are described in the relevant sections of this report.

Other Information

The other information comprises the information included in the $tatement of Accounts other
than the financial statements, the parts of the Remuneration Report described in that report as
having been audited, and my audit certificate and report. The Chief Financial Officer is
responsible for the other information included in the Statement of Accounts. My opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other information and except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in my report, | do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

My responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If | identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, | am required to determine whether this
gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the
work | have performed, | conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, | am required to report that fact.

I have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters
In my opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

e the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Department for Communities” directions made under the Local
Government {Accounts and Audit) Regulations {Northern ireland) 2015; and

e the information given in the Statement of Accounts for the financial year ended 31
March 2021 is consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which | report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Newry, Mourne and Down District Council
and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, | have not identified material
misstatements in the Statement of Accounts.

| have nothing to report in respect of the following matters which | report to you if:
* in my opinion:
o the Annual Governance Statement;:

» does not reflect compliance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020-21;

= does not comply with proper practices specified by the Department for
Communities;

= s misleading or inconsistent with other information | am aware of from my
audit; or
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o adequate accounting records have not been kept; or

o the statement of accounts and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited
are not in agreement with the accounting records; or

o | have not received all of the information and explanations | require for my audit, or

e [issue a report in the public interest under Article 9 of the Local Government (Northern
Ireland) Order 2005; or

e | designate under Article 12 of the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005 any
recommendation made to the Council; or

s | exercise the other special powers of the auditor under Article 19 to 21 of the Local
Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005.

Responsibilities of the Chief Financial Officer for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Council’s and Chief Financial Officer’s
Responsibilities, the Chief Financial Officer is responsible for:

s the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable financial
reporting framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view;

s such internal controls as the Chief Financial Officer determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free form material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error;

® assessing the Newry, Mourne and Down District Council’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Chief Financial Officer anticipates that the
services provided by Newry, Mourne and Down Council will not continue to be provided
in the future:

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

My responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with the Local Government
(Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and the Local Government Code of Audit Practice.

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue a
certificate that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

| design procedures in line with my responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material
misstatements in respect of non-compliance with laws and regulation, including fraud.

My procedures included:

e obtaining an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework applicable to the
Newry, Mourne and Down District Council through discussion with management and
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application of extensive public sector accountability knowledge. The key laws and
reguiations | considered included the Local Government (Accounts and Audit)
Regulations (Northern Ireland} 2015 and the Local Government Code of Audit Practice.

making enquires of management and those charged with governance on Newry,
Mourne and Down District Council’s compliance with laws and regulations;

making enquiries of internal audit, management and those charged with governance as
to susceptibility to irregularity and fraud, their assessment of the risk of material
misstatement due to fraud and irregularity, and their knowledge of actual, suspected
and alleged fraud and irregularity;

completing risk assessment procedures to assess the susceptibility of Newry, Mourne
and Down District Council’s financial statements to material misstatement, including
how fraud might occur. This included, but was not timited to, an engagement director
led engagement team discussion on fraud to identify particular areas, transaction
streams and business practices that may be susceptible to material misstatement due
to fraud. As part of this discussion, | identified potential for fraud in the following areas:
revenue recoghition, expenditure recognition, posting of unusual journals and (amend
and add as appropriate to the audit);

engagement director oversight to ensure the engagement team collectively had the
appropriate competence, capabilities and skills to identify or recognise non-compliance
with the applicable legal and regulatory framework throughout the audit;

documenting and evaluating the design and implementation of internal controls in
place to mitigate risk of material misstatement due to fraud and non-compliance with
laws and regulations;

designing audit procedures to address specific laws and regulations which the
engagement team considered to have a direct material effect on the financial
statements in terms of misstatement and irregularity, including fraud. These audit
procedures inciuded, but were not limited to, reading board and committee minutes,
and agreeing financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting documentation
and approvals as appropriate ,and {outline other audit procedures responsive to the risk
of fraud, non-compliance with laws and regulation or irregularity as appropriate);

addressing the risk of fraud as a result of management override of controls by:

o performing analytical procedures to identify unusual or unexpected
relationships or movements;

o testing journal entries to identify potential anomalies, and inappropriate or
unauthorised adjustments;

o assessing whether judgements and other assumptions made in determining
accounting estimates were indicative of potential bias; and

o investigating significant or unusual transactions made outside of the normal
course of business; and

A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on

the Financial Reporting Council’s website www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This
description forms part of my certificate.

This report is made solely to the Members of Newry, Mourne and Down Council in accordance
with the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and for no other purpose, as specified
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in the Statement of Responsibilities of the Local Government Auditor and Local Government

Bodies.

Certificate

| certify that | have completed the audit of accounts of Newry, Mourne and Down District Council
in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and

the Local Government Code of Audit Practice.

Colette Kane

Local Government Auditor
Northern ireland Audit Office
1 Bradford Court

Galwally

BELFAST

BT8 6RB

30" September 2021
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Newry, Moumne and Down District Council
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the year ended 31 March 2021

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Stalement shows the accounling costin the year of providing services in accordance
with generally accepled accounting practices, rather than the amount fo be funded from taxation. Councils raise taxation 1o cover
expenditure in accordance with statutory requirements; this may be difference from the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown
in both the Expenditure and Funding Analysis and the Movement in Reserves Statement,

Gross Net

Expendiure Gross Income Expendiiure Gross Expenditure Gross Income Net Expendiiure

Service Expenditure Notes £ £ £ £ £ £

Ctief Execulive 2 2,611,850 [1,890,495) 721.355 2778139 (36,816) 2,741,323
Comporate Services 2 12.919.546 (346.482) 12573064 14,869,015 {358,735} 14,510,280
';slfi’sﬁ:'se' Regeneration & 2 15,746,937 (6.463,797) 9,283,140 15,908,782 [5,.248,593) 10,660,189
Neighbourhood Services 2 31.031.515 (2.449.044) 28582471 28.787.326 [1.156.282) 27.631.044
el 2 17,269,860 (4280.518)  12.989.342 20,385,133 {6.359.288) 14,025,845
Commmunities

Cost of Services on Continuing
Qperations

79,579 708 [15.430.334) : 2 738, 3% (13,159 714)

Other Operating Expenditure/

e 8 270,270 {1.267.360] 15229 . 118,960} {18,960}

Financing ond Invesiment
Income ond Experiditure 9 3,443,066 [95.537) 3,347 57% 3198791 (139.679) Joseanz

{Surplus) or Deficit on
Disconlinued Operations

Share of Operaling Resulls of
ossociates and joint ventures

Net Operating Expenditure B5 045 (14.7 2 859 72 608 A33

Taxation and Nen-Specific N
Grant income a {74915733) (4515703 . 161,647,041} (61.647.041)

(Surplus)/Deficit on the
Provision of Services

(5895921}

[Surpiusi/Deficit on _
revatuation of nan-current 1 (2,509.372} [5.579,369)

assels

Impaiment losses on non
current gssets charged to the 11
Revaluation Reserve

Surplus/{Deficit} arsing on
revaluation of available-for 27
sale financial assets

Remeasurements of the Net
Defined Benefit Lability 21 2.810,000 5,595.000
{Assel]

Shore of Other

Comprahensive Expenditure 30
& Income of associotes and

joint ventures

Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 7,300,628 15,631

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 1,404,707 10,877,423



Newry, Mourne and Down District Couneil
Movement In Reserves Statement for the year ended 31 March 2021

The Movement in Reserves Statement shows the movement from the start of the year to the end on the different reserves heldby the
authority, analysed into 'usable reserves’ fi.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other
'vnusable reserves. The Statement shows how the movemens in vear of the Council’s reserves are broken down between gains and
losses incurred in accordance with generally accepled accounting practices and the statutory adjustment required to return to the
amounts chargeable to council tax for the year. The Net Increase/Decrease line shows the statutory General Fund Balance
movements in the year following those adjustments,

General Fund Oiher Fund Capital Total Usable Tolal Unusable Total Counci

Summary Balances aond Receipts Reserves Reserves Reserves
Reserves Reserve

£ £ £ £ £ £

Balance as at 1 April 201% 11,887 501 1615113 3 13,484,614 51,871,795 45,354 409

Movement in reserves during
the year

Surplusf {Deficit) on the

provision of services [10,961,792) . S {10.961.792) - [10.961.792)

Other Comprehensive . |
Income and Expenditure 3.631] (15631}

Tolal Comprahensive Income
and Expendiiure (10.961,7%2) {10.961.792) {15.631) (10.977,423)

Adjustrments between
accounting basis & funding 9.933.656 - - 9.933.656 [9.933.6568)
under regulations

Net increase before transiers
to Statulory and Other {1,028,1385) . - {1.028,13¢) (9.949.287) (10,977,423)
Reserves

Transters to / from Statulory
and Other Reserves B4:.500 ELE)

Increase/ Decrease in year {180,636) {847,500) s {1.028,134) (9.949.287) {10,977.423)

Balance as at 31 March 2020 11,708 BES TAT £13 - 12456478 1, 54379187

Movement In reserves during
the year

Sl b el 5895921 5895921 3 5895921
Provision of services

Other Comprehensive ; ) .
Income and Expenditure {7.300.628) {7.300,626)

oalCsmpreheasiveincore 5,895,921 . . 5,895,921 (7.300,628) (1,404,707)
and Expenditure

Adjustments between

accounting basis & funding 9778230 . 9,778,230 {9.804.870) [26.440)
under regulations

Net increase before fransfers

to Statutory and Other 15,674,151 - . 15,674,151 (17.,105,498) (1.431,347)
Reserves

Transfers to / from Statuiory f :

and Other Reserves (8154745 a\34763

Increase/ Decrease in year 7.519,402 8,154,749 - 15,674,151 {17.105,498) (1.431,347)

Balance ds at 31 March 2021 19,238 2467 8,902 342 - 28,130 42% 81T 20 52,947 840
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Newry, Moumne and Down District Councll
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021

The Balance Sheet shows the vaiue os at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by the Council. The net assets
of the Council [assets less liabilities] are matched by the reserves held by the Council. Reserves are reported in two cotegories, The first
calegory of reserves are usable reserves, i.e. those reserves thot the Council may use to provide services, subject to the need to
maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use. The second cotegory of reserves is those that the Council
is not able 1o use to provide services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses {for example the
Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide services if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold
timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Stolement fine * Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under
regulations'.

31 Mar 20

& £
Fixed Assets 11 186,442,457 189,433,018
Long Term Investments 14 - E
Long Term Debtors 15 115,864 101.420
LONG TERM ASSETS 184,758,321 18%.534 438
Short Term Investrmenis 16 -
Inventories 14 507,890 548.789
Short Term Debtors 15 9,825,600 7,358,147
Cash and Cash Equivalents 25 16,224,381 B&67.196
Assefs Heid for Sale 1

CURRENT ASSETS

Bank Overdraft 25 - 768961
Short Term Borrowing 17 10416318 15,589,508
Short Term Creditors 18 13.204,270 11,000,367
Provisions 9 500.000 575.000
CURRENT LIABILITIES 24130, 588

Long Term Creditors 18 3 .
Provisions 19 3,178,207 2,935,488
Long Term Borowing 17 63,707,557 59,255,059
Other Lang Term Lichilifies 21 49,362,000 53,807,000
Donated Assets Account 22 . -
Capital Grants Receipts in Advance 23

LONG TERM LIABILITIES 136,247,764 115,997,547
NET ASSETS 52,947 840 54,379,187
USABLE RESERVES

Capital Receipis Reserve 26 -
Capital Fund 26 627.613
Other Balances and Reserves 26 8,902,352 120,000
General Fund 26 19,228,267 11.708.865

28,130, 629 12456 478

UNUSABLE RESERVES

Capital Adjustment Account 27 41,797.916 44,870,973
Revaluation Reserve 27 53,993.812 52,242,326
Pensions Reserve 27 169.362.000) {53,807.000)
Accumulated Absences Account 27 [479.6583) [353,643)
Provisions Discount Rate Reserve 27 11.132,854) {1.029.947)

24817.211 41,922,709

NET WORTH 52,947 840 54,379.187

53



Newry, Mourne and Down District Council
Cash Flow Stalement at 31 March 2021

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Council during the reporting period. The statement
shows how the Councll generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operaling. investing and financing
activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operaling activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the
Council are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients of services provided by the Council. Investing activities
represent the extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended to coninbute to the Council's future
service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting ciaims on future cash flows by providers of caopital
(i.e. borrowing] to the Council.

£ £

Het Deficit on the provision of services (5.895.921) 10,961,792
Adjustment for non-cash movements 25 16,505.093 14,282,294
N T
Nef cash flows from operating activities 25 14,428,155 1,207,632
Cash flows from Investing Activilies 25 2,416,686 16.386,788)
Net Cash flows from Financing Activities 5 {720.692) 5093791
Netlincrease or decrease in cash and cash equivalents 16,124,14% {85,345}
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of Ihe reporting period 100,235 185,597
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reperting period 14,224,384 100,232



Newry, Mourne and Down District Councill
Notes to the Financial Stotements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

Accounting Policles

General Principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council's transactions for the 2020/21 financial
year and its position at the year-end of 31 March 21. The Council is required to prepare an
annual Statement of Accounts in a form directed by the Department for Communities in
accordance with regulations 3 (7} and (8} in the Local Government (Accounts and Audit)
Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015 in accordance with proper accounting practices.

These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in
the United Kingdom 2020/21, supported by International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS). The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally
historical cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and
financial instruments.

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21 also
requires disclosure in respect of:

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Accruals of Income and Expenditure

- Revenue from contracts with service recipients, whether for services or the provision of
goods, is recognised when (or as) the goods or services are fransferred to the service
recipient in accordance with the performance obligations in the contract.

- Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed - where there is a gap
between the date supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as
inventories on the Balance Sheet.

- Expenses in relation to services received [including services provided by employees) are
recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are
made.

- Interest receivable on investments and payable on bomowings is accounted for
respectively as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the
relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract.

Where revenue and expendifure have been recognised but cash has not been received
or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet.
Where it is doubtiul that debts will be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and &
charge made to revenue for the income that might not be collected.

Activity is accounted forin the year that it fakes place, not simply when cash payments are
made or received.
Acquisitions and Discontinued Operations

Newry, Mourne and Down District Council has not acquired operations (or transferred
operations under machinery of Government arangements) during the financial year.

The Council has not discontinued any operations {or transferred operations under
combinations of public sector bodies) during the financial year.
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i)

wi)

Provision for Single Status, Job Evaluation and Pay and Grading Reviews

As each of the legacy Councils had substantially completed its Single Status, Job Evaluation
and Pay and Grading Reviews, Council has not acquired an opening provision for such
matters. As the staff of the former legacy Councils and fransfeming in from the Department
of the Environment's Ptanning Service are protected by the Transfer of Protected
Undertakings Act (Northern Ireland) 2006 (TUPE). Council has not sought to amend these
Employees' terms and conditions of Employment. Appropriate provision will be made for
any financial consequences of employees terms and conditions as and when required.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable
without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are highly liquid
investments that mature within the agreed time frame or less from the date of acquisition
and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change
in value,

In the Cash Fiow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts
that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Council’s cash
management.

Contingent Assets

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible
asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurence or otherwise of uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Council.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the
accounts where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service
potential,

Conlingent Liabilities

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a
possible obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurence or otherwise
of uncertain future events not wholly within the controt of the Council. Contingent liabilities
also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation
cannot be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the
accounts.
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Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be setiled wholly within 12 months of the
year-end. They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid
sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits for current employees, and are recognised
as an expense in the year in which employees render service to the Council. An accruatis
made for the cost of holiday entitlements {or any form of leave, e.g. time off in lieu) earned
by employees but not taken before the year-end which employees can camy forward into
the next financial year, The accrual is made at the wage and salary rates applicable in the
following accounting year, being the period in which the employee takes the benefit. The
accrualis charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services, but then reversed out
through the Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday entitements are charged to
revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence occurs.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to
terminate an officer's employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s
decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits and are charged
on an accruals basis 1o the appropriate service segment or, where applicable, to a
corporate service segment at the earlier of when the Council can no ionger withdraw the
offer of those benefits or when the Council recognises costs for a restructuring.

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions
require the General Fund balance 1o be charged with the amount payable by the Council
to the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the
relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are
required to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for
pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid
to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-
end.

Post Employment Benefits

Employees of the Council are members of the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers'
Pension Fund administered by the Northermn Ireland Local Government Officers’
Superannuation Committee. The scheme provides defined benefits to members {retirement
lump sums and pensions). earned as employees worked for the Council.

The Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’ Pension fund

The Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’ Pension Fund is accounted for as a
defined benefits scheme.

The liabilities of the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’ Pension Fund attributable
to the Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected
unit method -i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to
retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality
rates, employee turnover rates , etc, and projections of projected earnings for current
employees.

Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate based on the
Aon Hewitt GBP Select AA Curve over the duration of the Employer's liabilities.
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The assets of the Northern lreland Local Government Officers' pension fund attributable to
the Council are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value:

quoted securities — current bid price
unquoted securities — professional estimate
property — market value

unitised securities — cumrent bid price

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components:
Service cost comprising:

Current Service Cost — the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this year
- dllocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the services for
which the employees worked

Past Service Cost - the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment or
curtailment whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years - debited to the
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statements.

Within Financing and investment Income and Expenditure

Net interest on the net defined benefit liabkility {asset), —i.e. net interest expense for the
Council, the change during the period in the net defined benefit liability {asset) that arises
from the passage of time charged to the Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement - this is
calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at
the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability (asset) at the beginning of
the period - taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability {asset)
during the period as a result of confribution and benefit payments.

Within Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (Remeasurements)

The Retumn on Plan Assets — excluding amounts recognised in the Net Interest on the Net
Defined Benefit Liability (Asset} charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure. This includes interest, dividends and other income derived from
the plan assefs, together with realised and unrealised gains or losses on the plan assefs, less
any costs of managing plan assets, and any tax payable by the plan itself other than tax
included in the actuarial assumptions used to measure the present value of the defined
benefit obligation.

Actuarial Gains and Losses — changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events
have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the
actuaries have updated their assumptions, charged 1o the Pensions Reserves as Other
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.
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Wwithin the Movement in Reserves Statement Appropriations

Contribufions by Scheme Participants - the increase in scheme liabilities and assets due to
payments into the scheme by employees {where increased confribution increases pension
due to the employee in the future).

Contributions by the Employer - the increase in scheme assets due fo payments into the
scheme by the employer.

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to
be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or directly to
pensioners in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting
standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are transfers to
and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement
benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners
and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance thot
arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund
of being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than
as benefits are earmned by employees.

Discretionary Benefits

The Councii also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of refirement benefits
in the event of early refirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to
any member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and
accounted for using the same policies that are applied to the Northern Ireland Local
Government Officers’ pension fund.

The Northern Ireland Clvil Service(NICS) Pension Scheme

As a result of Local Government Reform on 1 April 2013, staff that transferred from Centiral
Government to the Council retained membership of the Northern Ireland Civil Service
{NICS) Pension Scheme. The schemes provides defined benefits to members {retirement
lump sums and pensions). However, the arangements for the NICS Pension Scheme mean
that liabilities for these benefits cannot ordinarily be identified specifically to the Council.
The scheme is therefore accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme and no
liability for future payments of benefits is recognised in the Balance Sheet,

Evenis After the Balance Sheet Date

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable,
that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of
Accounts is authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:

- those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period
- the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events

- those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period - the
Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of
events would have a material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the
events and their estimated financial effect.
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The Statement of Accounts may subsequently be adjusted up to the date when they are
authorised for issue. This date will be recorded on the Statement of Accounts and is usually
the date the Local Government Auditor issues the cerfificate and opinion. Where material
adjustments are made in this period they will be disclosed.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the
Statement of Accounts,

Excepflional ltems

When items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is disclosed
separately, either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or
in the notes to the accounts, depending on how significant the items are to an
understanding of the Council's financial performance.

Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Esfimates and Errors

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to
correct a material eror. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for
prospectively, i.e. in the cument and future years offected by the change and do not give
rise to a prior period adjustment.

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting
practices or the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of
transactions, other events and conditions on the Council's financial position or financial
performance. Where a change is made, it is applied retrospeciively (unless stated
otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period os
if the new policy had always been applied.

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.

Financial Instruments

Financial liabiiities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Councit becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured af fair
value and are carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive income and Expenditure
Statement for interest payable are based on the camying amount of the liability, multiplied
by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. The effecfive interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments over the life of the instrument to the
amount at which it was originally recognised.

For most of the borrowings that the Council has, this means that the amount presented in
the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable [plus accrued interest); and
interest charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount
payable for the year according to the loan agreement.

However, the bonds issued by the Council in 2020/21 are carried at a lower amortised cost
than the outstanding principal, and interest is charged at a marginally higher effective rate
of interest than the rate payabie to bondholders, as a material amount of costs incurred in
its issue is being financed over the life of the stock.

60



Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, regulations allow the impact on the General Fund Balance to be
spread over future years. The Council has a policy of spreading the gain or loss over the
term that was remaining on the ioan against which the premium was payable or discount
receivable when it was repaid. The reconciliation of amounts charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the net charge required against the
General Fund Balance is managed by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments
Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Financial Assets

Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach that
reflects the business model for holding the financial assets and their cashflow
characteristics. There are three main classes of financial assets measured at:

- amortised cost

- fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), and

- fair value through other comprehensive income (FYOCI)

The Council's business model is 1o hold investments to collect contractual cash flows.
Financial assets are therefore classified as amortised cost, except for those whose
contractual payments are not solely payment of principal and interest {i.e. where the cash
flows do not take the form of a basic debt instrument).

financial Assets Measured at Amorlised Cost

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet when
the Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are
inificlly measured at fair value. They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost.
Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on
the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the
instrument. For most of the financial assets held by the Council, this means that the amount
presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable {plus accrued
interest} and interest credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure is the amount
receivable for the year in the loan agreement.

Interest is credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement at a marginally higher effective rate of
interest than the rate receivable from the voluntary organisations, with the difference
serving to increase the amortised cost of the loan in the Balance Sheet. Statutory provisions
require that the impact of soft loans on the General Fund Balance is the interest receivable
for the financial year - the reconciliation of amounts debited and credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the net gain required against the
General Fund Balance is managed by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments
Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of an asset are credited or debited to
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income
and Expendifure Statement.
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Foreign Currency Translation

Where the Council has entered into a transaction denominated in a fereign cumency, the
transaction is converted into sterling af the exchange rate applicable on the date the
transaction was effective. Where amounts in foreign currency are outstanding at the year-
end, they are reconverted at the spot exchange rate at 31 March. Resulting gains or losses
are recognised in the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Governmen! Grants and Contribulions

wWhether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable
assurance that:

- the Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and
- the grants or contributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement until conditions attaching to the grant or contribution have been
satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or
service potentiat embodied in the asset in the form of the grant or contribution are required
to be consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic benefils or service
potential must be returned to the transferor.

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied
are camied in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or
coniribution is credited to the relevant service line {attributable revenue grants and
contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income {non-ring-fenced revenue grants
and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement, they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves
Statement. Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted
to the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the
Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve are
fransferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund
capital expenditure.

intangible Assets

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are
controlled by the Council as a result of past events {e.g. software licences) is capitalised
when it is expected that future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the
intangible asset to the Council.

Internally generated assets are capitalised where it is demonstrable that the project is
technically feasible and is intended to be completed (with adequate resources being
available) and the Council will be able to generate future economic benetits or deliver
service potential by being able to sell or use the asset. Expenditure is capitalised where it
can be measured reliably as attributable to the asset and restricted to that incurred during
the development phase (research expenditure is not capitalised).
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Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair
value of the assets held by the Council can be determined by reference to an active
market. In practice, no intangible asset held by the Council meets this criterion, and they
are therefore canied at amortised cost. The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is
amaortised over its useful life to the relevant service tine(s) in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement. An asset is tested forimpairment whenever there is an
indication that the asset might be impaired - any losses recognised are posted to the
relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Any gain
or loss arising on the disposal or abandonment of an intangible asset is posted to the Other
Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement.

Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory
purposes, amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitied to
have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed
out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves $tatement and posted to the
Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital
Receipts Reserve.

Inventories & Long Term Confracts

Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
The cost of inventories is assigned using the FIFO costing formuia.

Long-term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services with the consideration allocated to the performance obligations
satisfied based on the goods or services transferred to the service recipient during the
financial year.

Investment Property

investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the
delivery of services or production of goods oris held for sale.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, being
the price that would be received to sell such an asset in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measureable date. As a non-financial asset, investment
properties are measured at highest and best use. Properties are not depreciated but are
revalued annually according to market conditions at the year-end. Gains and losses on
revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The some freatment is applied to
gains and losses on disposal.

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and
Investment Income line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and
result in o gain for the General Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains and
losses are not permitted by statutory arangements to have an impact on the General Fund
Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in
the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted o the Capital Adjustment Account and
the Capital Receipts Reserve.

Landfill Allowance Scheme

The Landfill Allowances Scheme operates under the Landfill Allowances Scheme [Northern
Ireland) Regulations 2005. Local Authorities are adllocated annual target figures for the
maximum amount of biodegradable municipal waste that can be sent to landfill but there
are no fradable allowances. Itis not a 'cap and trade’ scheme since landfill allowances
are not tradable. For this reason, landfill allowances are not recognised as assets on the
Balance Sheet,
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Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the
lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operaling leases.

Where a lease covers both land and buildings. the land and buildings elements are
considered separately for classification.

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey aright to use an
asset in return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the
arangement is dependent on the use of specific assets

The Council as Lessee - Finance Lease

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance
Sheet at the commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception
{or the present value of the minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is
matched by a liability for the obligation to pay the lessor. Initial direct costs of the Council
are added to the canying amount of the asset. Premiums paid on entry into a lease are
applied to writing down the lease liability. Contingent renis are charged as expenses in the
periods in which they are incumred.

Lease payments are apportioned between:

a. a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property.plant or equipment - applied
to write down the lease liability, and

b. a finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment income and Expenditure line
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement)

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the
policies applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the
lease term if this is shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life (where ownership of the asset
does not transfer to the Council at the end of the lease period).

The Council is not required to raise district rates to cover depreciation or revaluation and
impairment losses arising on leased assets. Instead. o prudent annual contribution is made
from revenue towards the deemed capital investment in accordance with statutory
requirements, Depreciation and revaluation and impairment losses are therefore
substituted by a revenue contribution in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting
transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement
for the difference between the two.

Operating Leases:

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as an expense of the services benefiting from use of the leased
property, plant or equipment. Charges are made on a siraight-line basis over the life of the
lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a rent-free period
at the commencement of the lease).
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The Council as Lessor - Finance Lease

Where the Council grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment,
the relevant asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the commencement
of the lease, the camying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant
and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or joss on
disposal. A gain, representing the Council's net investment in the lease, is credited to the
same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the
gain or loss on disposal {i.e. netted off against the camying value of the asset at the time of
disposal), matched by a lease asset (long term debtor) in the Balance Sheet.

Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between:

a. a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property - applied to write down the
lease debtor together with any premiums received, and

b. finance income [credited to the Financing and Investment income and Expenditure line
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).

The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on disposal is
not permitted by statute to increase the General Fund Balance and is required to be
treated as o capital receipt. Where a prermium has been received, this is posted out of the
General Fund Balance to the Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves
Statement. Where the amount due in relation to the lease asset is to be settled by the
payment of rentals in future financial years, this is posted out of the General Fund Balance
to the Deferred Capital Receipis Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When
the future rentals are paid, the element for the capital receipt for the disposal of the asset is
used to write down the lease debtor. At this point, the deferred capital receipts are
transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve.

The wiitten-off value of disposals is not a charge against District rates, as the cost of non-
current assets is fully provided for under separate amangemenits for capital financing.
Amounts are therefore appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General
Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The Council as Lessor - Operating Lease

Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or
equipment, the asset is retained in the Balance Sheetl. Rental income is credited to the
Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. Credits are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this
does not match the pattern of payments {e.g. there is a premium paid at the
commencement of the lease). Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging the
lease are added to the carrying amount of the relevant asset and charged as an expense
over the lease term on the same basis as rental income,
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Disposals and Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified
as an Asset Held for Sale. The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then
carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a
subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the Other Operating
Expenditure ling in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair
value are recognised only up to the amount of any previously recognised losses in the
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for
Sale.

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as assets held for sale, they are
reclassified back to non-current assets and valued at the lower of its camying amount
before they were classified as held for sale: adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or
revaluations that would have been recognised had they not been classified as held for
sale, ond their recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to sell.

Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as assets held for sale.

When an asset is disposed of, or decommissioned, the canying amount of the asset in the
Balance Sheet (whether property, plant and equipment or assets held for sale) is written off
to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) are
credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as
part of the gain or loss on disposal {i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at
the time of disposal). Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation
Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Amounts received for a disposal are categorised as capital receipts and credited to the
Capital Receipts Reserve. Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the General Fund
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against district rates, as the cost of non-
current assetls is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing.
Amounts are appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Overheads and Suppon Services
The costs of overheads and support services are not allocated to service segments.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected
to be used during more than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and
Equipment,

Recognition

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of property, plant and equipment
is capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future econamic
benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the Council and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an
asset's potential io deliver future economic benefits or service potential {i.e. repairs and
maintenance) is charged as an expense when it is incurred.
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Measurement

Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:

a. the purchase price

b. any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it
o be capable of operating in the manner intended by management

c. the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the
site on which it is located

The Council does not capitalise borrowing costs incured whilst assets are under
construction.

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the
acquisition does not have commercial substance (i.e. it will not lead to a variation in the
cash flows of the Council). In the latter case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange,
the cost of the acquisition is the camying amount of the asset given up by the Council.

Donated assets are measured initially at fair value. The difference between fair value and
any consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income line of
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, unless the donation has been
made conditionally. Unfil conditions are satisfied, the gain is held in the Donated Assets
Account. Where gains are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement, they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment
Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Assets are then camied in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:

- community assets and assets under construction - depreciated historical cost

- surplus assets - Revalued

-Infrastructure - revalued by LPS

- Vehicles are nof revalued.

- all other assets - fair value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in
its existing use ({existing use value ~ EUV)

Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of
an asset, depreciated replacement cost is used as an estimate of fair value.

Assefs included in the Balance Sheet at current value are revalued sufficiently regularly to
ensure thot their camying amount is not materially different from their current value at the
year-end, but as a minimum every five years. Increases in valuations are matched by
credits to the Revaluation Reserve fo recognise unrealised gains. Exceptionally, gains might
be credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement where they arise
from the reversal of a loss previously charged to a service.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2008 only, the
date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated
into the Capital Adjustment Account.

Impairment

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset
may be impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be
material, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the
carmying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall.
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Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by:

a. where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve,
the camying amount of the asset is written down against that balance {up to the amount of
the accumulated gains),

b. where there is no balance in the Revailuation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the
carnrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant
service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount
of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had
not been recognised.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided for on all property, plant and equipment assets by the systematic
allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An excepfion is made for
assets without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land and certain Community
Assets) and assets that are not yet available for use {i.e. assets under construction).

Deprecation is calculated on the following bases:

-Land: Land is not depreciated as it has an infinite useful life.

-Buildings: Straight -line depreciation over useful life which depends on the type of property
and use- it normally ranges from 10 to 50 years.

-Community: No determinable useful life and not depreciated held at nominal value.
-Investment: Held at market/fair value - Not depreciated

-Infrostructure: depreciation is based on a straight line basis using the remaining useful life of
the asset.

-Landfill Site: End of Useful Life

-Heritage Assets: These are not normally subject to depreciation and are held at either
Historic cost or insurance valuation.

-Plant and Machinery: Straight -line depreciation over useful life which depends on the type
of asset and ranges from 3 to 7 years.

-Vehicles: Straight-line depreciation over 7 years.

-Information Technology: Straight-line depreciation 3 to 10 years.

-Assets Under Construction: Held at Historic Cost and are not depreciated.

-Intangibles: Software licenses and systems are depreciated over estimated useful life.

Componentisation

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose cost is
significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated
separately.

Revaluations

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between
current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been
chargeable based on their historical cost being fransterred each year from the Revaluation
Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.
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i)

Heritage Assets

Heritage Assets are assets with historical, artistic, scienfific, technological, geophysical or
environmental qualities that are held and maintained principally for their confribution to
knowledge and culture. The carying amounts of heritage assets are reviewed where there
is evidence of impairment for heritage assets, e.g. where an item has suffered physical
deterioration or breakage or where doubits arise as to its authenticity. Any impairment is
recognised and measured in accordance with the Council's general policy on impairment

Heritage Assets are those assets that are intended to be preserved in trust for future
generations because of their cultural, environmental or historic associafions. They would be
held by this authority in pursuit of our overall objectives in relation to the maintenance of
heritage.

The Heritage Assets held by the Council include artefacts, historical fumiture, civic items,
Ross’ Monument, paintings ond drawings.



xxiii)

XXiv})

xxv)

Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or
constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits
or service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
For instance, the Council may be involved in a court case that could eventually result in the
making of a settlement or the payment of compensation.

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement in the year that the Council becomes aware of the
obligation, and measured at the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the
expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and
uncertainties.

when payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the
Balance Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year -
where it becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be
required (or a lower settlement than anticipated is made}, the provision is reversed and
credited back to the relevant service.

Where some or ali of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be
recovered from another party {e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as
income for the relevant service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if
the Council settles the obligation.

Reserves

The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover
confingencies. Reserves are created by transferring amounts out of the General Fund
Balance. When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the
appropriate service in that year against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then transterred
back into the General Fund Balance so that there is no net charge against District Rates for
the expenditure.

Certain reserves are kept 0 manage the accounting processes for non-cumrent assets,
financial instruments, retirement benefits and employee benefits and do not represent
usable resources for the Council - these reserves are explained in the relevant note to the
Arconnte

Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assels

Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to
record the cost of holding non-curent assets during the year:

<. depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service

b. revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no
accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off
c. amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service.
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Havi)

Xxvii)

xxix)

The Council is not required to raise District Rates to cover depreciation, revaluation and
impairment losses or amortisations. However, it is required to make an annual contribution
from revenue to contribute towards the reduction in its overall bomowing requirement
[equal to either an amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Council in
accordance with statutory guidance]. Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses
and amortisation are therefore replaced by the contribution in the General Fund Balance
[minimum revenue provision {(MRP]) or the Statutory Repayment of Loans Fund Advances),
by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement
in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two.

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but
that does not result in the creation of a non-curent asset has been charged as expenditure
to the relevani service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the
year. Where the Council has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing
capital resources or by borrowing, a transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from
the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the
amounts charged, so that there is no impact on the level of District Rates.

Value Added Tax

VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her
Maijesty's Revenue and Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income.

Fair Value Measurement

The Council measures some of its non-financial assets such as surplus assets and investment
properties and some of its financial instruments such as equity shareholdings at fair value at
each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly fransaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

Q) in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
b) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

The Council measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the Council takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in ifs highest
and best use or by selling it to another market padicipant that would use the assetin its
highest and best use.

The Council uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for

which sufficient data is available, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the Council’s financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, as follows:

* Level 1 - quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the authority can access at the measurement date

* Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observabie for
the asset or liability, either direcily or indirectly

* Level 3 — unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued but Have Not Yet Been Adopted

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom ({the Code)
requires an authority to disclose information relating to the expected impact of an
accounting change that will be required by a new standard that has been issued but not
yet adopted. The Code also requires that changes in accounting policy are to be applied
retrospectively unless fransitional arrangements are specified, this would result in an impact
on disclosures spanning two financial years.

The implementation of IFRS 16 Leases has been deferred until 1 April 2022,

Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made
by the Council about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking
into account historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However,
because balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual results could be materially
different from the assumptions and estimates.

The items in the Council's Balance Sheet at 31 March 2021 for which there is a significant risk
of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows:

Valuations of Land and Buildings are caried out externally by Land and Property Services
(LPS), in accordance with the methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the
professional standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS). As at the
valuation date, LPS considers that due to the COVID-19 pandemic, there is a shortage of
relioble market evidence for comparison purposes, to inform opinions of value. Therefore,
the valuations provided by LPS were reported on the basis of ‘material valuation
uncertainty' as per VPS 3 and VPGA 10 of the RICS Global Standards. Consequently, less
certainty, and a higher degree of caution, should be attached to the valuations than
would normally be the case. However, LPS advised that their material uncertainty clouse
serves as a precauvtion and does not invalidate the valuation.

Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

in applying accounting policies set out from 1a above, the Council has had to make
certain judgements about complex fransactions or those involving uncertainty about future
events. The critical judgements made in the Statement of Accounts are:

Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex judgements
relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are projected to increase,
changes in retirement ages, mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund assets. A
firm of consulting actuaries AON Hewitt is engaged to provide the Council with expert
advice about the assumpticons to be applied. The pension figures disclosed in these
financial statements are sensitive to the assumptions used.
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Newry. Mourne and Down District Councll
Notes to tha Anancial Slatements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

[-l Expenditure and Funding Analysis

The Expenditure ond Funding Analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources {govemment grants, rents, council
fax and business rates) by local cutherities in comparison with those resources consumed or eamed by authorities in accordance with
generally accepled accouniing practices. It also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes between the
council's [directcrates/ services/ departments]. Income and expenditure accounted for under generally accepted accounting practices is
presented more fully in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Nei Expendiure in Net Expenditure In
Net Expenditure he Comprehsnsiy Naf Exp the Comprehensive)
Choargable fo the, Adjustrrients Income and Chargable to he Adjustments Income an
Generat Fund| Expendilure Genaral Fund Expendiiur,
Statement State:
Chief Execulive 718922 (2,433 721,355 2,742,001 438 2,741,323
Corporale Servicas 13,347,335 774,271 12,573,064 14,838,292 328012 14,510,280
Entempnse. Regenaralion &
Tourism 4,112,558 (5.170.585) 9,283,140 7.254,273 3,405,918} 10.460.189
Neighbourhoed Services 23,969,472 14.612.999) 28.582.47) 24,685,182 (2,945,862} 27.631.044
Active & Haalihy Commrmunities 8,191,269 {4.798,073} 12,989,342 8919.398 (5.106,447) 14.025.845
e 0 O H 09819 2] 9 g b 9 &9 8 48
Other Income and Expenditure (44,013,704) 4,031,589 {70.045,293) (57.411,019) 1,195,870 (54.604.88%)

Surplus or Daficlt {15.674151) {9.778 230) {5.895.921) 1.028.137 (9.923.455]

Opening General Fund 11.708.865 11,869 501

Surplus/ {Deficit) on General
Fund Badance In Year 7,519,402 [140.434)




Newry, Mourne and Down Disirict Councli
Notas to the Financlal $talements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

2
b Note to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis

This note provides a reconciliation of the main adjusiments to Net Expenditure Chargeable to the General Fund to anive at the amountsin the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The relevant transfers between reserves are explained in the Movement in Reserves Staterment

AdJustments betwesn Funding and Accounting Basis

2020/21

Ad o o enera d to arive af the Ad e o o ange fo Other Statuto Othet no olo

e e e —— 1 £ £ £ £ £
Chief Executive - - [2.433) - [2,433)
Corporate Services 5,352,621 (4,544,000} {14,350) - 774,271
Enterprise. Regeneration & Tourism 5,124,654) - [45.931) - {5.170,585)
Neighbourhood Services [4.464.731) - {146,268) - [4.612.999)
Active & Healthy Commmunitias [4.778,128) - [19.945) - [4,798.073)
Net Cost of Services [2.014,892) [4.564,000) 1298.927) - [13,809.819)
Other Income ond Expenditure from the 5.212.589 {5.181,000) - - 4,031,589
Expenditure and Funding Analysis
Ditference between General Fund surplus or deficit [3.804,303) [5.745.000) [228.927) - [9.778,230)
and Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services

Adjustmants between Funding and Accounting Basls

2019/20
adjustments from Genetral Fund to arrive at the Adjustments for Net Change for Other Statutory Other non- Tetai
mpiehensive Income and Expenditure Capita the Pepsion Adjustimentis stalutory  adjustments
Slatement Amounts : Purposes Adjustmenis Adjustmenls
e e = e T ] T ma s | ey
Chiel Execulive - - 688
{Corporate Services 5.413,747 [5.087.000) 1,265 - 328.012
Enterprise, Regeneration & Tourism [3.394,546) - {11.370) - {3,405,914)
Neighbourhood Services {3,102,371) = 156.509 - {2.945.842)
Active & Heallhy Commmunities [5.073.463) - [32.984) - {5.106,447)
|Net Cost of Services [6.156.833 {5.087,000) 114,108 - {11.129.525)

Other income and Expenditure from the
Expenditure and Funding Anatysis 2142870 {747.000) - - 1195870

Difference between General Fund surplus or deficit
and Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services [{4.013.763) 6,004,000 114,108 - {9.933.655)

T4



Ad|justments for Capfial Purposes

Adjustments to General Fund Balonces to meet the requirements of generally accepled accounling praciices, this calumn adds in depreciation and impaiment
and revalualion gains and losses in the services line and for:

a) Other operating expendilure - adjusts for capital disposals with a fransfer of income on dispesal of assets and the omounts written off for ihose assets.

b} Financing ond investment income and expenditure - the statutory charges for capital finoncing i.e. Minimum Revenue Provision and ofher revenue
confributions are deducted from financing and investment income and expenditure as these are not chargeable under generally accepted accounting

¢} Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income ond Expenditure — Capital granis are adjusted for income rot chargeable under generally accepted accounting
practices. Revenue grants are adjusted from those receivable in the year to those receivable without conditions er for which conditions were satisfied throughout
the year. The Taxation and Non $pecific Grant Income and Expenditure line is credited with capital grants receivable in the year without conditions or for which
conditions were safisfied in the yeor,

Net change for the Pensions Adjusiments

Net change tor the removal of pensien confributiens and the addition of IAS 19 Employee Benefits pension related expenditure and income:

For Services: this represents the removal of the employer pension contributions made by the authority as allowed by statule and the replocement wilh curent
service cosls and past service costs.

For Financing and investment income and expenditure: the net inferest on the defined benefit liability is charged 1o the CIES.

Other statutory differences

Other statutory adjusiments between amounis debited/crediled to the Comprahensive Income and Expendilure Statement ond amounts payable/receivable to
be recognised under statute:

For Financing and investment income and expenditure the other statutory adjustmenis column recognises adijustiments 1o General Fund for the timing differences
for premiums and discounts.

The charge under Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure represents the difference between what is chargeable under statutory regulations for
district rates and NOR that was projected to be received at the start of the year and the income recognised under generally accepled accounting practices in
the Code.

Other non-statutory adjusiments

The reportable segments are based on the organisalional struciure of the Council comprising the Chief Executive’s depariment and four direclorates.



Newry, Mourne and Down District Council

Notes to the Finonclal Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

2

[ Segmental Income and Expenditure {Current Year)

Income and expenditure on a segmentol basis are analysed below:

Chief Executive 5,600 & - {794,063} -
Corporate Services (264,777 - [3.867) | 2.243.888 473,379 4,663,203 - - 5,796,000
Enterprise, Regeneration & Toursmmy (3,217,546 - - - 1,775,802 3.754,773 - - 3.348.852
Neighbourhood Services 1,081,034 - - - 2,631,329 16,061,952 - - 1.835.402
Active & Healthy Commmunities {364,048 - - - 2,269,486 4,641,232 - - 2.508.641
Tetal Income Analysed on a

segmental basis {4.921.807) - [3.867) | 2.243,888 7,149,994 28,327.097 - - 13,488,895

Covid Funding

The folowing amounts of Covid Funding received haove been included in ‘Material items of Income and Expense’ above:

Chief Executive {1.8%0.790) | HMRC Furough Income

Comporate Services -

Enterprise, Regeneration & Tourism {1,206,000) | DfC Covid-19 Recovery Revitalisofion programme
Neighbourhood Services {1.347,184) | DAERA Covid Funding

Active & Healthy Commmunities {8%6,970) | DFC Covid-19 Community Support Funding *

In addition, Department for Communities {DIC) Covid Funding Support of £5.606.427 (2019/20 £220,101) has been included in Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Incc
detailed at Note 10a.

The amount of Covid funding received but not expended during 2020/21 has been transferred to Usable Reserves as outlined at Note 2éc (i} and (iii).

* DfC Community Support Fund {Tranche 1 - 3}, Access fo Food Parnership Fund. Financial Inclusion Partnership Fund, Food & Essential Supplies Fund,
warm, well and Connected Fund, Yolunieering Support Fund.

Segmental Income and Expenditure (Comparative Year)

201920

{16,875 | . - - 905,853

Chief Executive -
Corporate Services {343,748 - [18.875) 1 2,226,614 417,495 4,789,584 - - 4,236,759
Enterprise, Regeneration & Tourismy (4,007,421 - - - 1,789,648 6,256,658 - - 1.8604,897
Neighbourhood Services 1.151.862 - - - 2,597,045 16,718,371 - - 505.326
Aclive & Healthy Commmunities 3.037,851 - - - 2,834,350 6,879,831 - - 2237113
Total lncome Analysed ona

segmental basis {8.557.757) - (18.875) | 2,226,616 7.640,538 35,550,299 e . 10,584,095




Newry. Mourne and Down District Council
Notes to the Financlal $tatements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

kW] Expenditure and income Analysed by Nature

Expandiura

Employee Benelils Expenses 7 (34,027.666) {35,900,300]
Other Services Expenditure {39.970.990) {37.486.886)
Support Service Recharges - -
Depreciation, Amortisation, Impairment I} {6.848.412) [9.341,209)
Interest Payments 9 {3.424,888) [{3.173.618)
Loss on the Dispasal of Assets 8 {1.522911) -
Other Expenditure {18.178) |25,175)
Total Expenditure {85.813,045) {85.927,188)

Fees, Charges and other service Income 16,697,696 13,159,714
Interest and Investment Income 9 5.276 20,760
District rote income 10 57,609,682 54,781,864
Govemment grants and Contributions 10 17,304,051 6865177
Support Service Income - -

Gain on the Disposal of Assels a - 18,940
Other Income 90,2561 118919
Total Income 91,708,966 74,965,3%4
(Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services 5,895,921 {10,941,792)

[ Revenue from coniracts with service recipients

The Council does not receive material revenue from contracts with service recipients.



PRl Adiustments between an Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations
Amounts included in the Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement but required by statute fo be excluded when defermining the

Movement on the General Fund Balance for the year:

al 2020/21 2019/20
2 - Notes £ £ £ £
Amounts included in the Comprehensive Income and Expendiiure Siatement but required by stotute to be excluded when

delermining the Movement on the General Fund Balance for the year

mpaoirments [losses & reversals] of non-current
assels 1 . [10.904)

Derecognition {other than disposal) of non-cumrent
assels 11

Revalugtion increases/decreases taken lo

Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services 11 {301,583) 1,711,575

Depreciation charged in the year on non-cument

assels 1 7.149.995 6,848,412 7.540,538 9,341,209
Net Revenue expenditure funded from capital

under statute 12 7964 479 2,834,425
Carrying amount of non current assets sold a8 2,790,271

Proceeds from the sale of PP&E, investment
property and intongible assets 4 [1.267,350) 1.522.91 {18740 (18,9601

Difference between finance costs calculated on
an accounting basis and finance costs calculoted
in accordance with statutory requirements

Net charges made for retirement benefils in
accordance with AS 19 21 10,721,000 11,569.000
Direct revenue financing of Capital Expenditure

Capilal Grants and Donated Assets Receivable
and Applied in yeor

10 16,705,499) {2.093.310)
Capital Grants Receivable ond Unapplied in year

Rates Claw-Back Reserve

Adjustments in relation to Short-temn compensated
obsences
F 126,020 137.383)

Adjustments in relation to Lessor Amangements

Landfitl Regulations Reserve Adjustiment e

Provisions Discount Rate Reserve Adjustment
7 102907 [74.825)
Amounts not included In the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement but required by
stalute to be included when determining the
Movement on the General Fund Balance for the
year

Statutory Provision for the fnancing of Capital
Investment 12 {5,824,000) {6.04%.000}

Employers contribulions payable to the NILGOSC
and relirement benefils payable direct to
persigners 21 [4.976,000) {5.535,000)

.778,230




Net transfers (1o)/from statutory and other
earmarked reserves: 2020/21 2020/21 2019/20 2019720

Caphol Fund

Interest -
From Capilal - B

Other 26 627,613 627,613 627.500 427,500
Renewal and Repalrs Fund

Interest -
Other 2% - - - -
Caplal Receaipls Reserve

Interest -
Other 26 - - - -
Other Funds and earmarked reservas

Interest - -

From Other funds - 240,000

Other 26 {8.782,3562) [8.782,362) - 240,000
Unysable reserves

Capilal Adjustment Account - - .

{8.154.749) 867.500




Ll Cost of Services on Continuing Operations

I-1 General power of competence

Prior 1o Local Government Reform on 1 April 2015, expendilure for special purposes wos limited under Section 40 of the Local Government
finance Act {Northem Ireland) 201 5. This seclion was repealed by Schedule 10 of the Local Government Act [Northem Ireland) 2014,

Under Section 79 of the Local Govemment Act (Northem Ireland) 2014. the Council has the power to do anything that individuals generally moy
do. Council's hove the power to do this with or without charge. The power of compelence is not miled to benelitting the area or ils residents
noris it limited by existing powers.

The actual expenditure under the power of competence amounted to £0 during 2020/21 {£0in 2019/20).

] External Audit Fees

The Council has incumed the following costs retaling to the annual audit of Ihe Slaterment of Accounts, cerlification of grant cloims and other
services provided by the Council's external auditors.

. £ £
External Audit Fees 48,000 47,000
National Fraud Initiative: Fees 1,244 =
Other Fees 5.250 22,000

74,494 8%.000

The other fees of £5,250 (2019/20 £22,000 ) were incured in respect of performance audit services provided by the appointed auditor.

'Sl Operafing and Finance Leases
Council os Lessor
a Finance Leases (Councll as lessor)

The Cauncil hos rna finance leases as lessor.

b Operating Leases (Council as lessor)

Renlalincome recognised in the Comprehensive iIncome ond Expenditure Statement in the cumrent year omounts to £284,611.

The fulure minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable operaling leases in fulure years ore:

| £ £
Not later than | year 233,446 255017
Lader than | year and no later than 5 yeors 467,685 436,234
Later than § years 248,784 288,187

969,917 $7%.438

The assets leased by the Council to third parties are included in the categories of Properly, Plant and Equipment with carrying values of:

31st March 2021 315t Morch 2020

by
-

Investment Properlies 3,290,002 2,240,002
3.290,002 2,240,002

Council as Lessee
¢ Finance Leases (Councll as lessee)

The assets acquired under these leases are caried as property. plant and equipment in the Balance Sheet at the following net amounts:

31 Mar 21 31 Mar 20

Other Land and Buildings & 0
Vehicles, Plant, Fumniture and Equipment - 8.820
8820

The Council is commilied to making minimum payments under these leases comprising seftlement of the long-term lability for the interesi in the
properly acquired by the Council and finance costs that will be payable by the authority in futurg yeors while the liability remains oulstanding.
The minimum lease payments ore made up of the following amounis:



Minimum Lease Payments

The minimum leose payments will be poyable over the following periods:

5.297

31 Mar 21 31 Mar 20
£ £
finance leases liabiliies (net present value of minimum lease
paymenis):
Cument 5 4,172
Non- Current R R
Finance costs payable in future yeors 5,297 9.042

13.214

Not later than one yeaor
Later ihan one year and not loter than five years
Later than five years

Minimum Leose Payments
31 Mar 21

31 Mar 20
£ £
4,172

5297 9.042

Finance Lease Liabilities

31 Mor 2t 31 Mar 20
£ £
- 4,172

d Operating Leases (Councli as lessee)

The future minimum lease payments due under non-concellable leases in fulure years are:

31 Mar 21

31 Mar 20

Not later than | yeor 155,892 137,610
Loter than 1 yeor and no later than 5 years 344844 361,640
Later than 5 years 1,317,902 1,207,481

1,820,640

1.706.731

The expenditure charged 1o services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement during the year in relalion to these leases wos:

£ £
Minimum lease payments 124,002 149,935
Conlingent renials B N
Less: Sublease poyments receivable - R

Total

124 002

149,935



T

Employee Costs and Member Allowances

[] Staff Costs 2020/21 2019/20

£ £

Salaries and Wages 25,503,530 26,287,249
Employers NIC 2.211,755 2318874
Employers Superannuation 5.058.963 5,668,381
Total statt costs 32,774,248 34,274 504
In addition, agency costs during the year amounied to £1,253.418 (2019/20 £1.625,794).
The Council's currerd contribution rote to NILGOSC scheme is 19.5% .
At lost acluarial valuation dated 315t March 2019 the funds assets meel 112% of liobdilies at that date [31/3/16-96%).
Average Number of Employees - where FIE represents fulllime equivalent employees

[] Average Number of Employees 2020421 2019/20

FTE

Chief Execulive 14 19
Corporate Services 110 113
Enterprise, Regeneration & Tourism 169 177
Neighbourhood Services 333 349
Active & Healthy Commmunities 245 250

o

s

O
o
=
o

2020421 2019720
Actual Actual|
Numbers Numbers:
Full-time numbars employed 769 BOS
Part-time numbers employed 212 224
Total Number 381 1,030

[4 Senior Employees’ Remuneralion

£50.001 1o £60.000

£60.001 1o £70,000

£70,001 1o £80,000

£80.001 to £90.0000

£90.001 1o £100.000

£100.001 to £110,000

£110.001 1o £120,000

Total Number

20

22

[.| Members' Allowances
2020/2% 2019/20

£ £
Salaries & o
Basic allowance 634.926 614,592
Mayors & Deputy Mayor's Allowance 26,458 26,458
Special Responsibility Allowances 76,334 73,169
Dependents’ carers allowance 2,283 449
Employer cosls 190,119 187,315
Mileage 7.0%6 60.303
Conferences and Courses 8,175 4,533
Travel & Subsistence Costs 4658 10.486
Miscellaneous Casls 17,083 65.323
Severance Payments S 5
Total 463,132 1,042,628



CINorthern Ireland Civil Service Pension Arrangements

As a fesult of Reform on 15t April 2015, staff transferred from Central Govermment to the Council ore members of the Northem kreland Civil Service
Pension Scheme,

The Northem Ireland Civil Service Pension arrangements are unfunded multi-employer defined benefit schemes but the Department for
Communilies is unable to ideniify its share of the underlying assels and liabilities. The most up to date aciuaial valuation was canded out os at 31
March 2014, This valualion is then reviewed by the Scheme Acluary and updated to reflect cumrent conditions and rolled lorward to the
reporling date of the DOF Superannualtion and Other Allowances Resource Accounts as al 31 March 2021,

For 2020/21, employers’ contributions of £408,308 were poyable to the NICS pension arangements at one of four rates in the range 28.7% to
34.2% of pensionable pay. based on salary bonds,

The scheme's Acluary reviews employer contributions every four years following a full scheme valuation. A new scheme funding valuation
based on data as at 31 March 2014 was completed by the Actuary during 2018/19. This valuafion was used to determine employer confribution
rates for the infroduction of a new carger average eaming scheme from April 2019, The conlribution rates are set to meet the cost of the benefits
accruing duing 2020/21 to be paid when lhe member refires. and not the benefits paid during this period to existing pensioners.

No persons retired early on ill-health grounds os such the actuanal cost for employees for the early payment of retirament benefits was £nil.
Other Operaling Income & Expenditure

[-] Surplus/Deticit on Non-Current Assets {excl Investment Properties}

'i

2020/21 201%/20
£ £
Proceeds from sale [1.267.360) {18,960)
Canying amount of non-cument
assets sold [excl Investment
Properties} 2,790,271 -
1.522.911 {18.960)
[.] Other Operating Income/ Expenditure
(20 019 0
£
Income - -
Expenditure B s

Other Operating Expenditure

202021
[

201%/20
£

{Surplus) / Deficit on Non Cuman! Assals

1,522,911

{18.960)

Cther Operaling (Income] / Expendilture

LI Financing and Investmeni Income and Expendilure

:] Inferest Payobkle and Similar Charges

| Interest and investment Income

2020421 2019720
£ £
Lease/hire purchase interest - -
Bonk interest - 5
Govemnment Loan Interest 2,243,888 2,226.816
Commercial Loan Inlerest - -
Other interast (please specify) - -
2,243,888 2,226,416

1522911

(18.940)

e
L]

2020421 2019/20
Bank Interest 3.867 18,875
Employee car loon interest 1,409 1.885
NIHE Loan interest receivable - s
Investment income on Fund Balances
Capilal Fund - -
Repairs & Renewals Fund - -
Other Funds - -
Other Investment income - B
5276 20,760




I Pensions interest costs and expected return on pensions assets

)
Lo

2020/21

2019/20

Net interest on the net defined
benefit liability (osset)

1,181,000

947.000

[-] surplus/ {Deficit) on frading operations

1,181,000

947,000

lincome from frading

Expenditure

[Surplus)/Deficit for the year

I Income, Expenditure and changes in Fair Value of Investment Propedies
2020/21 201%/20
Income/Expenditure from

investment Properties:

£

Income including rental income
Expenditure

Net income from investment
properties

Surplus/defic on sale of
Invastment Proparties
Proceeds from sale

Carying amount of invesiment
properties sold

{Surplus)/deficit on sale of
Investment Properties:

Changes in Fair Value of
Invesiment Properties

{60,261}

{88.919)

18,178

25175

42.083)

[63.744)

[30.000)

{30.000)

Financing and Investment Income

and Expenditure

|72,083)

{93.744)

2020/

201920

(sross Gross Net Gross Nat
Expenditure Income Expendiure  Expenditure Gross Income Expanditure
£ £ £ £ £ Hf
[Interest Payable and Similar
Charges 2,243,888 - 2,243,888 2,226,614 - 2,226,616
Interest and Investment Income - [5.278) [5.274) - {20,760} 120.760)
Pensions interest cost 1,181,000 - 1,181,000 947,000 - 947,000
Surplus/ [Deficity on frading
operations - - - - R R
Other investment income 18,178 {60.261} [42,083) 25,175 {88.919) [63,744)
Changes in Fair Value of
Invesiment Properties - {30,000) {30,000) - {30,000) (30.000)

3,443.046

(95,537)

3,347,529

3,198.791

[137.67%)

3059112




Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income

L Revenue Grants

Cther Revenue Grants relate to Covid-19 Funding Support from the Department for Communities.

[:]Revenue Grants - Unapplied

2020/21 2019/20
£ £
General (4.994,125) | {4.551.166)
Other [5.606.427) {220,101)
110,600,552) [4.771.267)

The Council has no Revenue Grants Unapplied.

[4 Capital Granis and Donated Assets - Applied

L]
th

2020/21

201%/20

Govemment & Other Grants -
Conditions met and applied in
year

[6.705.499)

(2093910

Govemmeni & Other Grants -
Transfer from receipts in advance

Daonafed Assels - Conditions met

Donated Assets - Transter from
donated assets creditor

.l Capital Grants - Unapplied

L]
[

{6.705.499)

{2.093910]

2020421

201 9/20

Govemment & Other Grants -
Conditions met and not applied in

~
[+
[+}
L

Q
=3
@
=

-] District Rates

2020/27 2019,/20
£ £

Curent year [56,346,735) | (54.126,950)
Finqlisation - previous year [1.262.947) [454,914)
Transilicnal Relief - -
Finalisation - other years g &

{57.609.682)  [54.781,844)
Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income 2020/2) 2019/20

£ £
Distict Rate Income {57,609.682) [54,781,864)
Revenue Grants {10,600,552) (4.771.267)
Capital Grants and Contribufions 6,705,499} [2,.093.910)
(74.915.733) (61,647,041}
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Newry. Mourne and Down District Councll
Noles to the Financial Stalements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
11 ¢ Properly, plant and equipment
Depreciation
The following useful lives and depreciction roles have been used in the calculation of depreciation:
- Buildings - 1 to &4 years straight line
- Vehicles, plant, fumiture and equipment - 5 to 7 years siraight line
- Infrastructure - 1 to 14 years shraight fne depreciation
Efects of Changes In Eslimates
In 2019/20. the Council made two maoteral changes to its accounting estimates for propery, plant and equipment:
Revaluations
The Council camies out a rolling programme that ensures that all property, plant and equipments required o be measured
The significant assumplions applied in estimaling the current values of property, plant and equipment are:
Non-operatlonal Property. Plant and Equipment {Surplus Assets)
The Council does not have materiol suplus assels.

d infangible Assets

The Council owns intangible assels which relate to market rights, purchased licensed software and o Fcance for @ mouniain
bike site as follows:

Intangikzle Assels

Balance at start of year:

Gross camying amounts 5.066.074 3,749,489
Accumulated amortisation 1,566,190 1.177.920
Net camying amount at start of year 3.499.884 2.571.7¢6%
Additions 225.671 1,316,385
Amortisation for the period [434,391) {388,270}

Other Changes

Nel canying amaunl at end of vear

Comprising:

Gross camying amounts 5,291,745 5.066,074
Accumulated amortisation 2,002,581 1,566,190

Net canying tmount af end of yecor 2,289 154

11 = Investmant Properties

The following items af income and expense have been accounted for in the Ainancing ond Investment Income and
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expendifure Statement:

Investment Properties 31/03/2021 3170372020
£ i

[Rental Income from Investment Activities 60.261 88919
|Dlrecr Qperating expenses arsing from investment properties {18,178} [25.175)
[Nt gain/{loss) 42,083 63,744

The following table summaries fhe movement in the fair value of investmen! properlies over the year:

nvesiment Properiles 2020/21 2019720
£ g

Balance at start of the year 2,240,002 2,210,002

Additions

Disposals

Net gainsflosses from fair value adustrments 30.000 10,000

Transfers to/ from inveniories

Transfers to/ from property, plant and equipment 1,020,000

Other changes

Balance at end of the year 3,290,002



| @ Heritage Assets

The Council's collection of Heritage Assets is reported in the Balance Sheet at insurance valuation or historic cost. These
assels include museumn artelacis, werks of art and civic iterms. Ross’ Monument is also included which is situated between
Rostrevor and Wamenpoint,

The tollowing table summorises the Heritage Assets held by the Council:

Heritage Assels

Artefacis

Historical Fumityre

Civic ltems
Ross' Monument

Paintings and Drawings

Balance at end of the year

¢ Assets Held for Sale
Assels Held for Sale have been recorded in Note 11 ol a value of £666,460.

h Long-Term Assefs - Leased Assets

| | Vehicles Equipment TOTAL
| £ [3 £

Cost or Valuation
At 1 April 2020 364,473 35,626 401,09¢
Additions - -
Disposals g -
Al 31 March 2021 344,473 36,828 401.09%
Depreciation
Al 1 April 2020 355,652 36.626 392,278
Disposals - -
Provided for year 8,821 - 8,821
At 31 March 2021 344,473 36,426 401,099
Nel Book Value - - -

| | Vehicles] Equipment] TOTAL

[ | £ £ [
Cost or Valuation
Al 1 April 2019 364,473 36,626 401,099
Addilions - -
Disposals - -
Al 31 Mmarch 2020 364,473 34,526 401,09%
Depreciation
At 1 April 2019 346832 36,625 383,458
Disposals - - -
Provided for year 8,820 - 8,820
At 31 March 2020 355,452 36.428 392,278
[Net Book Value 8,821 - 8,821

} Revaluation

valualions of Lond and buitdings are camied ouwt extemally by Land and Property Services (LPS). As af the voluation date,
the LPS have advised that the outbreak of the novel Coronavirus [COVID-19), dectared by the World Health Organisation as
a "Global Pandemic” on 11th March 2020, has impacted global financial markets. As a consequence LPS have reported
that as at the valuation date, they consider thal it is prudent to advise that market evidence gathered, for comparison
purposes, has attached fo an increased level of uncertainly. The voluations are therefore reported on the basis of ‘material
valualion uncertainty’ as per VPS 3 and VPGA 10 of the RICS Global Slandards. Consequently, less certainty - and a higher
degree of caution - should be attached to them than would nomally be the case. However, LPS advised that their

materiol uncertainty clause serves as a precoution and does not invalidate the valuation.



|F Il Capital Expendilure and Capilal Financing

The total amount of capilal expenditure incured in the year is shown in the table below {including the value of assels
acquired under finance leases and PFl contracts}, together with the rascurces that have been used o finance it. Where
capital expendilure is fo be financed in fulure years by charges to revenue as assels are used by the Council, the
expenditure resulls in an increase in ihe Capital Financing Requirement {CF), a measure of the capital expenditure incured
historically by the Council that is vet to be financed. The CFR is analysed in the second part of this note.

01920

Opening Capltal Anancing Requirement 92,319,720 89.733.221
CapHal Investment

Property, Plant and Equipment 11 4,198.849 4,465,159
Investrment Properties = -
Intangible Assets 225.671 1,316,385
Revenue Expendilure Funded from Capital under

i 7.964.479 2834425
Investments & -
Gther [59.153) 132,400
Sources of Finance

Capital Receipts 1,267.360) [18.940)
Govemment Grants and Other Confributions 10 4,705,499) (2,093,210
Transfers from Eamarked Reserves - -
Sums sel aside from Revenue:

Direct Revenue Conlribulions - -
Minimum Revenue Provision [3.826.000) 16,049,000
Closing Capital Financing Requirement 90.850.727 92,319,720

(Kl Future Capital Commitments

The Council has an onguoing programme of capitol works and the estimated cost of the schemes is as follows:

14

Gress Cost Grant Aid

£

Schemes underway

12,976,493

Other Commitments | [ 30.993.500 | 8,096,250

| 22,897,250

Inventories

45,450,598 9.574.855

2020421 2019420

35,873,743

£
Contral Stores 313,694 358,240
Other | 194,196 | 190,549
Total 507,890 548,789

a2



14

17

Govemnment Departments

Other Councils

Public corporations and trading funds

Bodies extemnal to general govemment

|Employee car loans

Ravenue Grants

Capital Granis

Interest Receivable

Capital Debtors

Loans and advances

Finance lease debtors

Trade deblors

NIHE Loans

Other

Impairment of loans and receivables

Contract Receivables

Total Lorg-Term Debtors
[ Sheri Term Debfors

Govemment Departments

115844

2020/21
£
1,556,137

101.420

20i9/20
£
1,530,050

Other Councils

130,199

356,980

Public corperafions and trading funds

Bodies external 1o general govemment

NIHE loans

Employee car loans

13,529

17,287

Revenue Grants

1,885.744

2.247.680

Copital Grants

3.721,11%

1.320.872

Iinterest Receivable

Capital Debtors

Value Added Tax

1,366,032

1,102,768

Prepayments

252,162

301.956

finance leoase deblors

Other

324,580

255,538

Trade receivables

898,299

607,347

Impairment loss - Trode receivables

{322,20))

(402,531}

Contract Receivables

Total Short-Term Deblors

Total Debtors

$.825.600

7,941,454

7.358.147

7,459,567

The Council has no investments.

Borrowings

] Short Term Botnowing

Loans re-payable within one year

10,416,318

15.585.338

Finance Lease Principal

4,172

1 Long Term Borrowing

] | - |

Total Sher Term Borrowing 10,416,318 15,589,508

2020421
£

2019420

Between 1 and 2 years 4,342,321 4,149,071
Between 2 and 5 years 11.811.049 11,519,559
Between 5 and 10 years 18,597,126 17.367.197
In more than 10 years 28,957,081 26,219,232
Government Lodns Fund 53,707,557 59,255,059
Tolai Borrowing 74,123,875 74,844 547



Y] Sho o 020 019720
Govemment Departments 1,292,517 1,040,989
Other Councils 366,327 403,975
Public corporations and Irading funds 222,380 17.555
Bodies extemal to genercl govemment - g
Rates clawback = g
VAT = =
Remuneration due to employees 1,951,493 1.733.278
Accumutated Absences 479,663 353,643
L.oan Interest Payable 5 -
Capital Creditors 4,133,682 3,324,666
Receipis in advance 555,768 623,326
Trade creditors 4,180,454 3,434,200
Other 21,946 £8.735
Tetal Short Term Creditors 13,204 270 11.000,367

Total Lang Tenn Cieditors o

Total Creditors 13,204,270 11,000,367
The creditor batance for "Other Councils' relates mainly to legal and waste costs.
] Fayment of Invoices

The council hos a target, where no other terms are agreed, of paying supplier invoices wilhin 30 calendar days. During the
year the Council paid 15207 invoices totalling £62.093,851.

The number of disputed invoices were 118,

The Council poid

13,083 {86%) invoices within 30 calendar days target:

1,707 {11%) invoices within 10 working days target: and

2.124 invoices oulside of the 30 day larget.

The average number cf days laken to pay suppliers during the year was 23 days

%

Provisions
Increase in Unused Interest cost

Balance as at 1 provision Utllised duiing amounts andfor discount Balance as of 31
April 2020 during year year reversed rate changes Moarch 2021
£ £
Londfill Closure 2,935,488 314,116 {71,397) o o 3,178,207

Staff Costs 75.000 o |57.312) {17.488) - -
Restructuring Costs 500,000 - - - - 500,000
3.510.488 314116 (128.709) {17.688) 3,678,207
Current Provisions 575,000 - 57,312 {17.588) 500,000
Long Term Provisions 2,935,488 314,114 71.397| - 378,207
Total 3,510,488 314,114 {128,70%9) (17,688} 3.678,207

Provisions

Balance as of 1

April 2019
£

Increase in

provision Utilised during

during year
£

year
£

Unused
amouynis
reversed

Interest cost

Restated

and/or discount Batance as at 31

rate changes
£

March 2020

Landfill Closure 3,140,993 - 71.397) {134,108}
Staff Costs 70.500 65,623 {41.123) = o 75,000
Restructuring Caosts - 500,000 - - - 500,000

Total 3.211,493 565,623 {132.520) {134.108) 3.510 488
Currant Provisions 70,500 565,623 161,123 : 575,000
Long Temm Provisions 3,140,993 - 71,397 [134,108) 2,925,488
Total 3,211,493 545,423 {132,520) (134.108) 3.510.488

Landfill Closure

The expected cost of landfill closure and altercare costs of £3,178,207 is based on the percentage ulilisation of the landfill
sites of both Drumanakelly and Aughnagun and hos been recognised as a provision. Aughnagun Landfi¥ Site was closed at
31st March 2015, Drumanakelly Landfill Site ceased to take landtii on 30th April 2016, Now that the sites have closed it will
take a period of lime belore there will be a reliable frend for closure and aftercare costs and gas generation income.

Restructuring Costs

the provision is for ‘Planning for the Fulure’ - a review of the directorate and management structures,



P I Financial Inshuments

Categories of Financial Instruments

The following cotegories of financial instrument are carrled in the Balance Sheet:

Financial Assets as at 31 March 2021

Non-Current Current
Investmenis & Cash and
Cash and Cash Cash
Equivalents Debtors Equivalents
£ £
Fair Volue through
profit or loss - = -
Amortised cost 115864 10,222,828 LISZ.173 11,525,865
1
Fair Value through |
other comprehensive
income - designated
aquity instruments
Fair Value through
other comprehensive
ncome - Money
Market Funds - 6,001,558 - 4,001.558
Total Financial Assets - 115,854 16,224,384 1.187.173 17.527.423
Non-financial Assets - - S 8,638,427 8.638.427
Telal - 115,864 | 16,224,386 9.825.600 26,165.850

Debtors at amortised cost as at 31 March 2021

Non-Cument Current

£ £
Trade Receivables 898,299
Trade Receivables - impairment Loss [322.201)
Government Depariments 276,383
Soft Loans 43,541 3.281
Employee Car Loans 14,195 13,529
Gas Income Debtor 58,128 294,497
Other 23.385
Total 115,864 1,187,173

financlal Assels as af 31 March 2020
Non-Current

Investments &
Cash and Cash

Equivalents
£

Fair Value through
profit or loss

Amortised cost o
Foir Value through |

other comprehensive |

income - designated |

equity inskurnents

Fair Value through
other comprehensive |
income - other |

Current

Cash and

Cash

Cebtors Equivalents
£ £

101,420 867,196

Debtois
£

825,237

1.793.853

Total Financlal Assefs f - 101,420 857,196

Non-financial Assets | -

825,237
6,532,910

1,793.853
6,532.910

Total | - 101,420 867,194

7,358,147

8,324,783

Dabtors at amortised cost as at 31 March 2020

Meon-Current Current

£ £
Trade Receivables - 607,347
Trade Receivables - Impairment Loss - 402,531}
Govemment Departiments - 347,594
Soft Loans 47,141 3,281
Employee Car Loans 11,279 17,287
Gas Income Deblor 43.000 233775
Other - 18,482
Total 101,420 825,237




Financlal Uabliities as ot 31 March 2021

Non-Current
Borrowings

3

Creditors
[4

Current
Borrowings
£

Creditors
£

Fair Yalue through

profit or loss

Amortised cost 63,707.557 10,414,318 9,635,989 83,759,864
Total financlal

Nabiiies 63,707,557 - 10.416,318 9.635,989 83,759,864
Non-financial

liabilities - 3,568,264 3.568,264
Total 43,707 557 - 10,416,318 13,204,253 87.328,128

Financial Liabllities as ot 31 March 2020

Fair Vakue through

Non-Current
Borrowings

£

Creditors
£

Cumrent
Bolrowings
£

Credilors
£

profit or loss ) B B
Amortised cost 59,255,059 15,589,508 8,021,286 82.845.853
Total Ainanclal '

Nabifties £9,255,05% . 15,589,508 8,021,286 82,845,853
Nen-financia

liabitlies : . 2,979,081 2,979,081
Total 59.255.05% - 15,589,508 11.000.367 66,844,934

Material soft loans made by the Council

The Council has one historic soft loorn bul does not consider this fo be materal

Employes Car Loans

The Council made loans for car purchases at 31/3/202 1 to 8 employees, including 2 members of the Senior Managament

Team, who are in posis that require them to drive regularly on the Council's business.

nierast is charged on the loans of Bank of England Base Rote plus 1.5%.

Balance at start of

year:
Opening balance
Nominal value of
new loans granted in
the year

Fair value adjusiment
on iritial recognition

28,566

16,812

50915

Fair value of new
Loans repaid
Impairment losses
Increase in
discounted amount
Other changes

45,378
{17.655)

Closing balance at

end of year

27,723 |

50915
(22,349}

28,566

Nominal value at end
of year

27,723

28.566

Yolvation assumptions

These loans have been volued at nominal value as they are not considered material 1o the Council



Income, Expense, Gains and Losses

2020721
Suiplus or Deficit on the Other Comprehensive Income
Provision of Services and Expenditure

Interast revanue
Financial assels
measured at
amoertised cost

3.867 -
Total interes! revenue | 3867 | -]
Interest expense | 2243888 | -

2019/20

Surplus of Delicit on the  Other Compiehensive Income
Provision of Services and Expenditure

Interest revenue
Financial assels
measured at
amortised cost

18,875 -
Total inferest revenue | 18,875 | -
interest expense | 2,226,616 | .

Fair Values of Financlal Assets and Financlol Liabilities

Fair Values of Financlal Assets and Financlol Liabilities that are not Measured at Falr Valve {but for which Falr Valve
Disclosures are Required).

All the financial liabilities and financial assets held by the authorily are classified os loans and receivables and long-term
debtors and creditors and are ¢amed in the Balonce Sheet at amortised cost. The fair values calculated are gs follows,

31 Mar 20
Carrying C Carrying Fair value

Financial Liabilities amount amount

£ £

Financigl Fabilities
held at amoriised

cost [Loans]

74,123,875 82,144,382 74,840,395 81,843,543
Long-term creditors - - S 5
PFl and finance lease = - 4,172 4,172
Tolal 74,123,875 82,144,382 74,844,567 81,847,715

The majority of the Council's porifolio of loans are held with the Government Loans Fund and cany a premature
rademption penalty if the loons are repaid early.

Other financiol assets and liabilities including frade receivables, frade payables and cash and cash equivalents are camied
at cost as this is a fair approxdimation of their value.



Fair Vatues of Financlal Assets and Financlal Lisbiltties that are not Measured at Falr Value

Guoted prices Other
in active signiticant
markels fer observable
identical assets inpuis (Level
{tevel 1) 2)

Significant
unchservable
inputs (Level

3)

Recurring fair value
measurements using:
Financlal Nabilities

Financial liabilities 5

held of amortised |

cost:

Loans/bomrowings 2,144,382 - B2.144,382
Total - 82,144,382 | - 82.144.382

Financlal assets 1
Financial assets held
at amortised cost

Soft loans to third
parlias

- T4,545 - T4.545
QOlher financial assets | . - -
Total e - 74,545 g 74,545

Quoled prices Other
in acfive signiticant
markeis for observable
identical assets inputs (Leve!
[Level 1) 2)

Significant
ynobservable
inputs (Level
3)

Recuriing tair value
measurements using:
Financiol Nabliitiss
Finonciol liakdities
held at amortised
cosl:
Loans/bomrowings 81.847. 715 - 81,847,715

Tolal - 81,847,715 | - 81,847,715

Financial assefs
Financiol assets held
at amortised cost
Soft loans to ihird
parties - 78.988 - 78.988
Other financial ossets

Tolal - 76,988 | - | 7

The fair value for inanciol liabilities and financial assets that are not measured ol fair valye included in levels 2 and 3 in the
fable above have been amved af using a discounted cash flow analysis with the most significant inputs being the discount
rate.

The fair value for inancial liabilities and financial assels that are not measured ot fair value can be assessed by calculkaling
the present value of the cash flows that will iake place over the remaining lerm of the instruments.

Other financial assets including trade receivables and cash and cash equivalents ore camed af cost as this is g fair
approximation of their value,



Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from FInancial Instruments

The Council's aclivilies expose it to a variely of financial risks:

Cradit Risk

Credit risks arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions os well ¢s credil exposures te the Council's customens.
Cuslomers are assessed taking into account their financial position. past experience and ather factors, with individual credit
limits being set in accordonce with porameters set by the Council, The provision for bad and doubiiul debts refiects the
Council's assessment of the risk of non-payment by trade deblors and as such, there is no further additional esfmated
exposure to default and inability to collect.

Trade Debtors. incluslve of VAT, are analysed by age £

Less than three months 482,399
three to six months 34,998
six months 1o one year 127,115
More than one year 548,320
Total 1,192,832

The above figures inciude trade debis relaling to car parking, govemment departments and other councils disclosed
separately in Note 135.

Loss Allowance by Asset Class - Assels Held ot Amortised Cost

Lifetime expected credit losses - not credit impaired £

Opening Balance as at ) April 2020 402,531
Decrease {80.330}
Closing Balance as ot 31 March 2021 322.2010

The Expected Credit Losses default rate for Council trade debt has been increased by o factor of 1.31 {2019/20 3.45] due to
the changing economic condilions o5 a result of the Corona Virus. The factor takes aecount of predictions by three leading
credit roling agencies.

There is no historical experience of default in relation to deposits with banks and other financial institutions. The Coungil
manages credit risk by ensuring Ihat investments are only placed with organisations of high credit quality os st outin the
Treasury Managemeni Strategy.

Liquidity Risk

The Counci manages ils liquidity position through the risk management processes set out in its annual Treasury
Management Strategy and Prudenitial Indicators, os well as through the aclive management of the cash llow position. This
seeks to ensure that cash is available when il is needed.

As the Council has ready access to bomowing from the Public Works Loans Board, there is no significant fisk that it will be
unable 1o rgise finonce o meet its commitments under Financial Instruments. The maturity anatysis of financial Eabiities is
included at Note 17 and other payables are due for paymeni within one yeor.

Market Risk: Interast Rates

The Council is exposed la risk in terms of its exposure to interest rate movemants on its borowings and investments. The
Council is in raceipt of loans from the Department of Finance howsever these loans are at fixed concassionary interest rates
that differ from the prevailing market rates.

Forelgn Exchange Risk

The Council hos no financial assets or liabilifies denominated in foreign cumencies other than a bank acceunt deneminated

in Euro. This account is used solely to facilitate the CANN Project {Collaborotive Action for the Natura Netwark). The Council
does nol consider this a material exposure to loss arising from movements in exchange rates.



1 Retirement Benefits
] Participation in the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund.

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers and other employees, the Council offers refirernent
benelits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire, the Council has a commitment to
make the paymenis that need o be disclosed at the time that employees eam their fulure enfitlement.

The Councll parficipates in the Northern Ireland Local Government Cfficers’ Pension Fund administered by the Northem
Irefand Local Government Officers' Superannuation Committee. This is a funded scheme, meaning that the Councll and
employees pay condributions info a fund, calculaied at a level intended 1o balance the pension’s liabilities with invesiment
assels

b Transactlons relating to reliremant beneflts - Comprehensive Income and Expanditure Statement

The Council recognises the cost of retirement benefils in the Cost of Services on Confinving Operations when they are
eamed by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions.

However, the charge the Council is required to moke against district rotes is based on the cash payable in the year, and
the real cost of refirement benefils is reversed oul in the adjusiments between accounting basis & funding basis under
regulations line, in the Movemnaent on Raserves Statement.

The following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the
adjustiments between accounting basis & funding basis under regulations fine, in the Movement on Reserves Statement
durng the year:

2019/20

£

Net cost of services:

Current service cost 9,484,000 10,527.000
Past service cost/[gain] 56,000 $5.000
Gains and lossas on settlements or curtailments - -

Net opearaling expenditure:
Net interest on net defined benefit Liobility {asset) 1,181,000 247,000

Total Post-employment Benaeflis charged to the Surplus or Deficit on
the Provision of Services 10.721.000 11.569.000

Movement in Reserves Statement:

Reversal of net charges made for refirement benefits in accordance
with 1AS 19 and the Code {10.721.000) {11.569.000)

Aclual amount charged against the general fund balance for
pensions in the year:

Empleyers' conlibulions payable to scheme 4,976,000 5.535.000

Ne! adjustment to General Fund (5.745,000} (4.034.000)

100



The service cost figures include on allowance for administration expenses of £124k.

Remeasurements recognised in Oiher

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 2020/21 2019420
£ £
Liability gains/{losses) due to change in assumptlions {48,043.000) 4,5567.000
Liability gains/{losses) due 1o due to demographic changes - 7.503,000
Liability experience gains/{losses) arising in the year 1,987,000 [2.289.000}
Actuarial gains/{losses) on plan assels 34,244,000 { 15,378,000}
Other - -
Total gains/(losses) secognised in Other Comprehensive Income and Expendilure (9.810.000) {5,5%5.000)
[ and liab alion o b

o ation of p glue o ab o 020 019420
Balance as at 1 April 215,947,000 214,391,000
Cument service cos! 9,484,000 10.527.000
Interest cost 4,952,000 5.107.000
Contributions by members 1,601,000 1,633,000
Remeasurement [gains} and losses:

Aciuanial gains/losses ansing from changes in financial assumplion 48,043,000 4,567,000

Actuarial gains/losses arising from demographic changes - 7,503,000

Actuarial gains/losses arising on liobilities from experience {1,987.000) 2,289,000

Other (if applicable) - -
Past service costs/[gains) 56.000 95,000
Losses/|gains] on curtailments - -
Liabilities extinguished on setflements - -
Estimated unfunded benefits paid {78.000) {80,000
Estimated benefits paid {5.022.000) (4,945,000
Balance as at 31 March 273.9946.000 216,947,000
Reconcilialion of present value of the scheme assets: Note 2020/21 2019/20

£ £

Balance as at 1 April 163,140.000 172,213,000
Inlerest Income 3,771,000 4,150,000
Contiibytions by members 1,601,000 1,633,000
Contiibutions by employer 4,898.000 5,455,000
Contiibytions in respect of unfunded benefits 78,000 80,000
Remeasurement gain/{loss) 36,246,000 (15,374,000}
Assels distibuted on settlements & o
Unfunded benefits paid {78,000 [80.000)
Benefils paid (5,022,000, [4.945.000)
Bala e Qs q 0 04,534 000 40 000

The expected retum on scheme assels is determined by considering the expecled returns available on the assets underlying
the cument investment policy. Expecied yields on fixed interest investments are based on gross redempfion ylelds as at the
Balance Sheet dale. Expected retums on equily investments reflect long-term real rates of return experienced in the

respeclive markets.

The acluol refum on scheme assets in the year was a gain of £40m (2019/20 loss of £11.2m).

Falr Value of Plan Assels

2020421

#

201920

Equity investments 94,745,542 69.497.640
Bonds 73,054,338 63,135,180
Properly 18,212,426 16,314,000
Cash 10,845,602 7.667,580
Other 7,776,092 6,525,600

The above asset values are at bid value as required by 1AS 19

204,434,000 163,140,000

Delails of esfimates made by the Fund Manager when ossessing the fair volues of plan assels

The armaounts included in the fair volue of plan assets for property occupied by the Councit was Enil.




The Council's share of the Net Pension Llabliity {Included in the Balance Shest):

.| Scheme History
Analysis of scheme assets and liabllities

2020/21
£

2020/21 2019/20
£ £

Fair Value of Employer Assets 204,634,000 163,140,000
Present value of funded defined benefit obligalion (272,911,000} {215,793.000)
Pension asset/(liobllity) of Funded Scheme [68.277.000) {52,653,000)
Present Value of unfunded defined benefit obligation {1.085.000) {1,154,000)
Other movement in the liability {asset} (if applicable) - -
Net asset/(lioblity) arising rom the defined benefit obligation [69.362.000) {53,807.000)
Amount in the Balance sheel:

Ligbilities (273,996,000 [214,947.000)
Assets 204,634,000 143,140,000
Net Asset/(Liability} {69,3462,000} {53,807 ,000)

2089720
£

Fair Value of Assets in pension scheme 204,634,000 143,140,000
Present Value of Defined Benelit Obligafion (273,996,000} [216,947.000)
Surplus/(deticit) in the Scheme (69,362,000} {53,807 000)

Amouni recagnised in Other Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure:

2020/21

201819
Restated

£ £
Actuarial gains/{losses) [44,056,000) 9,781,000
IExpected Retumn on Plan Assets 36,246,000 115,376,000
Increase/{decrease) in irecoverable surplus from membaership fall
and other factors - -
Remeasurements recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure [%.810,000) 15.595.000)
Cumulative actuarial gains ond losses {15,405.000) 12.590,483)
History of exparience gains and losses:
Experience gains and {losses) on qssets - -
Experience gains and {losses) on liabilities {1,987.000) 2,289,000

The liabilities show Ihe underying commitments that the autharily has in the long run fo pay refirement benefils. The total
liability of £274m has a substantial impact on the net worth of the Council as recorded in the Balance Sheet resulting ina

net iability of £69.4m.

Howaever. stalulory arangements for funding the deficit mean ihat the financial position of the Council remains healihy.

The deficit on the Northem Ireland Local Govemment Officers’ Pension Fund will be made good by increased conlributions
over the remaining working life of employees, assessed by the scheme acluary.

Analysis of projected amount to be chaiged to the Cemprehensive Income and Expenditute Stalement for the year to 31
March 2022

31/03/2022 31/03/2022
3
Projected cument cost 13,456,000 90.6%
Net interest on the net defined benefit liability {asset) 1,403,000 ?.4%
Pasi service cost - 0.0%
Gains and losses on seftlements or cuttgilments & 0.0%

14,859,000 100.0%

The total conlributions expected lo be made to the Northem Ireland Local Govemmenl Officers’ Pension Fund by the
council in the year to 31 March 2022 15 £5.376.000,

History of experience gains and losses

The acluarial gains/losses identified as movements on the Pansions Reserve 2020/21 can be analysed into ihe following
colegories, maasured as a percentage of assels or liabilities ot 31 March 2021,

2020/ 2019/20

o o
e o

Experence {gains and [lossas) on Assels
{Experience gains and {losses} on Liabiliies

| | 0.73% | -1.06% I
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b Basis for astimating assets and liabilities

Liabilities have been assessed on an acluarial basis using the projected unit method, an estimate of the pensions that will
be payabla in the future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rales, salary fevels. elc. The Council's Fund
ligbilities hove been assessed by Aon Hewilt Limited, an independent firm of actuaries, esfimates for the Council Fund being
based on dota pertgining to the latest full valuation of the scheme as of 31 March 2021,

Pension scheme assumptions:

2020/21

2019/20

Equity invesiments 46.3% 42.6%
Bonds 357% 38.7%)
Property 85% 10.0%)
Cash 53% 47%)
Ofher 38% 4.0%)
Mortallty assumptions:

Longevity at 65 cumrent pensioners: Yoars Years

Men 219 218
Women 25.1 250
Longevity al 45 for future pensioners:

Men 23.3 23.2
Waomen 26.5 26.4
Inflgtion/Pension Increase Rate 2.70% 2.00%
Salary Increase Rate 4.20%, 31.50%
Discount Rate 2.10% 2.30%
Pension accounts revaluation rate 2.70% 2.00%

Pensian Assumplions Sensitivity Analysis

The pension figures disclosed in hese financial stalements are sensitive to the assumplions used.

The approximate impact of changing key ossumplions on the present value of ihe funded defined benefit obligation as al

31 march 2021 is set out below,

In each cose, only the assumption noted below is altered; all other assumptions remain the same ond are summarised in

the disclosure above.

Funded Penslo e Beneflts

Discount Rate Assumption

Adjustment o discount rate +0.1%p.qa. -0.1%p.0.

Prasent value of the total obligation 267,726,000 278,096,000

% change in the present value of the tolal obligation -1.90% 1.50%
Projected service cost 13,012,000 13.914.000

Approximate % change in projected service cost -3.30% 3.40%
Rute of General Increase In Salarles

Adjustment to salary increase rote +0.1%p.a. -0.1%p.0.

Present value of the total obligotion 274,003.000 271,819,000

% change in the present value of the total obligation 0.40% -0.40%
Projecied service cost 13,456,000 13,456,000

Approximate % change in projected service cosi 0.00% 0.00%
Rale of Increase to Pensions In Payment and Defered Pension Assumplion

Adjustiment to pension increase rale +0.1%p.0. -0.1%p.a.

Present value of the total obligation 277,005,000 248,817.000

% change in the present value of the total obligation 1.50% -1.50%
Projected service cost 13,914,000 13,012,000

Approxdmote % change in projected service cost 3.40% -3.30%
Post Relireament Mortality Assumption

Adjustment o morality age rafing assumption® - 1 Year 1 Yeor

Present value of the total obligation 282,736,000 263,086,000

% change in the present value of he total obligation 3.60% -3.60%
Projected service cost 14,008,000 12,918,000

Approxdmate % change in projected service cost 4.10% -4.00%

* A rating of +1 year means thal members are assumed to follow the moriality pattem of the base table above for an

individual that is 1 year older than that.
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[l Major categories of plan ossets as percentage of total plan assets

The Northem ireland Local Govemment Gificers’ Pension Fund's assets consist of the following categories, by proportion of
the lotal asseis held:

Equity investments 46.30% 42.60%
Govemment Bonds 23.60% 26.10%
Corporate Bonds 12.10% 12.60%
Property 8.90% 10.00%|
Cash 5.30% 4.70%
Other 1.80% 4.00%
Total 100.00% 100.00%

[*] Northern lreland Clvil Service Pension Arrangements

The Northem iretand Civil Service Pension arrangements aore unfunded mulli-employer defined benefit schemes but the
Council is unable to identify Its share of the underlying assets and liabilities. The most up to date acluarial valuation was
camied out as at 31/03/19. This valuation is then reviewed by the Scheme Actuary and updated to reflect cument conditions
and rolled forward fo the reporling date of the DoF Superannuation and Other Alowances Resource Accounts as af 31
March 2021.

Guaranteed Minimum Pension [GMP) is a porlion of pension that was acenved by individuals who were contracted out of
the stale pension prior to 6 Apsil 1997, At present there is an inequality of benefits between male and femate members who
have GMP. Although the Govemment infends that GMP should be equalised. at present it Is not clear how this equalisation
will be implemented. In July 2014 the Govemment staled an intention to develop fully considered proposals and to publish
guidance when ths work is completed, but no torget date was given. The impact of any liabilities relating to the Council is
therefore uncertain and no provision has been made in these financial statements.

PP 3l Donated Assets Account

Analysis of Donated Assels Account

The balance of the Donated Assefs Account represents donations received that have yet to be recognised as income. as
they have condilions attached lo them, which will require the donaled assets to be retumned, if condifions are not met,
During the year the Counci had no Donated Assels and the balance on the Donated Assels Account was £Nil at 31st
March 2021.

LB Caopital Grants Received in Advance

Analysis of Caplial Grants Recelpts In Advance Balance

The Council has no capilal granis received in advance.

kI Bl Contingencies

The Arc 21 Joint Commitlee has wilh the approval of their parficipant Counclls, entered into o Conlingent Liability
undertaking with the bidding consortium in the procurement for the Residual Waste Treatment Project and Newry, Moume
and Down District Council has agreed the legacy Down District Council's share of the contingent Eabilily. Payments made if
any in accordance with this undertaking will be funded by the participating Councils. No further information on this
agreement can be disclosed due to the commercial sensifivity of the procurement process. In addition to the above, The
Council is one of the parties to the successful legal action [Oclober 2020), laken against HMRC, that charges paid since
2006 by members of ihe public for access to sporls, recreafion and leisure facilifies provided by NI Councils were oulside
the scope of the YAT regime and that the VAT should be repaid. The Council understands that HMRC hos appealed the
judgement, the oulcome of which will be reported to the Council in due course.



Newry, Mourne and Down District Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

IR Other cash flow disclosures
-] Analysis of Adjustments to Surpius/Delicit on the Provision of Services

Adjustment to surplus or deficit on the provision of services

for noncash movements

2020/21

Adjust for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the

provision of services that are investing and financing

202021

£ £
Depreciation 11 7.149.995 7.640,538
Impairment & downward revaluations (& non-sale
derecognifions} 11 (271,583) 1,730,671
Amoriisahion [included wilh deprecialion above) . 5
Increase)/Decrease in inveniories 14 40,899 {136,976)
Increase)/Decrease in Debtors 15 {1.554,945) {1,.552,192)
Increase/{decrease] in impairment provision for bad debts 15 {80,330} 183,128
Increase/(Decrease} in Creditors 18 2488914 246,530
Increase/(Decrease} in Interest Creditors - B
Payments to NILGOSC 21 5,745,000 6,034,000
Carmying amount of non-current assels sold 8 2,790,271 -
[AUC/WIP written off fo Nel Cost of Services 11 59,153 {132,400)
Contributions to Other Reserves/Provisions 26127 147,719 298,995
Movement in value of investment properies-included
above in Impairment & downward revaluations (& non-sale
derecognitions) {30,000) {30,000}
Amounls posted to CIES from Donated Assets Account 22 - -
16,505,093 14,282,294

Purchase of shor-term {not considered to be cash
equivalents) and long-term investmenis (includes
investments in associates, joint ventures and subsidiaries)

Proceeds from short-term {not considered to be cash
equivalents) and long-term investments (includes
investments in associates, joint ventures and subsidiaries)

Proceeds from the sale of PP&E, investment property and

intangible assets 8 {1.267.340) (18,960}
Capital grants included in "Taxation & non-specific grant
income" 10 (6.705,499) {2,093,210)
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b

Cash and Cash Equivalentis

For the purposes of the cash flow statlement, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and in bank and short
term deposits and investments {considered to be cash equivalents), net of oulstanding bank overdrafts. Cash and
cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period as shown in the statement of cash flows can be reconciled to the

related items in the Balance Sheet s follows:

I Cash Flow Stalement: Operaling Activilies

2020/21

2020/21 201%/20 2018/19
£ £ £
Cash and Bank balances 2.918.093 87.305 1,091,386
Short Term Deposits (considered to be Cash Equivalents) 13,306,288 779.891 12,187
Short Term Investments (considered to be Cash Equivalents) z 5 5
Bank Overdraft - {764.941) (917.976)
16,224,381 100,235 185597

The cash flows from operating activities include: £ £
Interest received 5276 20,760
Interest paid 2,243,888 2,226,616
] Cash flows from Investing Aclivities 2020/21 2019/20
£ £
Purchase of PP&E, investment property and infangible assets 11 {4,709.551) (9.590.516)
Purchase of Short Term Investments {not considered to be
cash equivalents) - -
Purchase of Long Term Investments - -
Other Payments for Investing Activilies - -
Proceeds from the sale of PP&E, investment property and
intangible assels B 1,247,360 18,960
Proceeds from Short Term Investments (not considered to be
cash equivalents) - -
Proceeds from Long Term investiments - -
Capital Grants and Contributions Received 5,858,877 3,184,748
OCther Receipts from Investing Activities - -

o

Net Cash flows from Investing Activities 2,416,686 (6,386,788}

™ Cash flows from Financing Activities 2020/21 2019/20
Cash Receipts from Short and Long Term Bomowing 4,000,000 10,000,000
Other Receipts from Financing Activities - -
Cash payments for the reduction of the outstanding liability relating to a finonce
lease and on-Balance Sheet PFl contracts

14,172) -
Repayment of Short and Long Term Borowing {4,716,520) (4,906,209}
Other payments for Financing Activities - -
Net Cash flows from Financing Aclivities (720,692) 5,093,791




I3l Usable Reserves
] Capital Receipts Reserve

These are capital receipts which have ariginated primarily from the sale of assets which have not yet been used 1o
finance capital expenditure.

The Capital Receipls Reserve is credited with the proceeds from fixed asset sales and other monies defined by
statute as capital receipts. These are originally credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Stolement as
part of the gain/less on disposal and posted out via the Movement in Reserves Statement to the Capital Receipts
Reserve. The reserve is wrilten down when resources are applied to finance new capital expenditure or set aside 1o
reduce an autharity's capital financing requirement (or used for other purposes permitted by statute).

Capital Receipts Reserve Notes 31/03/2021 31/03/2020
£ £

At 1 April - -

Movement

Disposal of Non Curent Assets/Capital Sales 1,267,360 18,940

Capital Receipts used to finance capital expenditure 3,11 [1.267.360) (18,960)

s] Capital Fund

This fund was established under section 56 of the Local Government Act (NI} 1972, however this section of the act
was repedled under the Local Govermment Finance Act (Nothemn Ireland} 2011. Councils should disclose delails
where any of these reserves are earmarked for specific purposes.

Capital Fund 31/03/2021 31/03/2020

£ £
At 1 April 627,613 1,255,113
Transfers between statutory 8 other reserves & the General
Fund {627.613) {627,500)

At 31 Maich = 427613
I4 Other Balances & Reserves

Other Balances & Reserves 31/03/2021 31/03/2020

£ £
At 1 April 120,000 360,000
Transters between statutory 8 other reserves & the General
Fund 4 8,782,342 {240,000)
At 31 March 8,902,342 120,000

{i). Election Reserve - this reserve is used 1o equalise (smooth} the cost of elections by building up a fund to cover the
costs of fulure eleciions by making contributions, as and when required. to the reserve. The balance at 31/3/21 is
£209,500 [31/3/20 £120.000).

{ii}. Covid Funding Reserve - the Depariment for Communities allocated funding to Councils to alleviate the impact
of exceptional losses and costs incured or estimated to be incurred as a consequence of Covid-19. This reserve was
created lo ring-fence the unspent funding. The balance at 31/3/21 is £2,459,033.

(iii). Covid Support Granis Reserve - the Department for Communities issued a range of Covid support grants during
the year ended 3151 March 2021 for Revilalisation and Community Support. This reserve was created to ring-tence the
vnspent funding. The balance at 31/3/21 is £2,233,829.

{iv). Covid Revitalisation Reserve - this reserve has been crealed to assist with the revitalisation of the District post-
Covid. The bolance at 31/3/21 is £1,750,000.



{v]). Economic Recovery Reserve - this reserve has been created to assist with the economic recovery of the District

post-Covid. The balance at 31/3/21 is £2,250,000.

'] General Fund

This reserve shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from District Rates. Councils raise rates to cover
expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is

shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

General Fund Notes 31/03/2021 31/03/2020
£ £

At 1 April 11,708,865 11,869,501
Applied Capital Grants 10,12 (6.705,499) (2.093.910}
Unapplied Capital Grants received in year . 5
Direct Revenue Financing 4,12 - -
Depreciation and Impairment adjustment 4 4,848,412 9,341,209
Statutory Provision for financing Capilal Investment 4 {5.824,000) {6.049.000)
Net Revenue expenditure funded from capital under stalute

4,12 7,964,479 2.834,425
Surplus/(Deficit) on the Provision of Services CIES 5,895,921 (10,961,792)
Transfers between Statutory and Other Reserves and the
General fund 4 (8,154,749) 867,500
Net movements on Pension Reserve 4,21 5,745,000 6,034,000
Disposal of Fixed Assets/Capital Sales 3,4,11,23 1,522,911 (18.960)
Difference between finance and other costs and income
calculated on an accounting basis and finance costs
calculated in accordance with statutory requirements 126,020 37,283
Other Movements 102,907 74,825
At 31 March 19,228,247 11,708,845




FTA Unuseable Reserves
'] Capitai Adjustment Account
The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arangements for

accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for the acquisition, construction or enhancement of those
assels under statutory provisions.

The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation, impairment losses
and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, with reconciling postings
from the Revaluation Reserve to convert fair value figures fo an historic cost basis.

The account is credited with the amounts set aside by the Council os finance for the cosls of acquisition, construction
and subsequent costs.

The Account contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment Properties and gains recognised on donated
assels that have yet to be consumed by the Council.

The Account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1 April 2008, the
date thal the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains.

Copital Adjustment Account 31/03/2021 31/03/2020

L £
At 1 April 44 870,973 46,810,666
Applied Capital Grants 10, 12 6,705,499 2,093,210
Unapplied Capital Grants transferred to CAA in year - 5
Direct Revenue Financing 4,12 - -
Depreciation & Impaiment adjustment 11 {6.848,412) (2,341,209)
Statutory Pravision for financing Capital Invesiment 4,12 5,826,000 6,049,000
Net Revenue expenditure funded from Capital under statute 4,12 (7,964,479) {2.834,425)
Disposal of Fixed Assets/ Capital Sales 4,11 {2.790.271) -
Capital Receipts used to finance capital expendilure 4,12 1,267,360 18,260
Other Movements 731,246 2,074,071
Transfers between Capital Fund/Renewal & Repair Fund &
CAA to finance capital expenditure 12 - -
At 31 March 41,797.914 44 B70.973

[] Revaluation Reserve

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from increases in the value of its Property,
Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets. The reserve is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are:

- revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost
- used in The provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation, or
- dispased of and the gains are realised.

The reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2008, the date the reserve was created.
Accumulated gains arising before that dote are consolidated into the balance on the Capital Adjustment Account,

The purpose of this account is to build up a balance based on the revaluation {upwards or downwards) of individual
assels. All such revaluations (excluding impairment losses that have been debited to Surplus/(Deficit) on the
Provision of Services are mirrored in Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. It is a fundamental principle of
this account that it never becomes negative. It an asset was held at current value when derecognised, the balance
held on the Revaluation Reserve is written off to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Revaluation Reserve 31/03/2021 31/03/2020

£ £
At 1 April 52,242,326 48,737,027
Revaluation & Impaiment ] 2,509,372 5,579.36%
Other Movements (757.886) {2,074,070)
At 31 March 53.993.812 52,242 326
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' Pension Reserve

Pension Reserve Notes 31/03/2021 31/03/2020
£ £
At 1 Apiil (53.807,000) | (42.178.000)
Net Moverments on Pension Reserve 4,21 {5.745,000) (6.034,000)
Revaluation & Impairment 21 (9.810,000) {5.595,000)

At 31 March (6%.342,000) (53,807,000)

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting for post-
employment benefits and for funding benefils in accordance with statutory provisions. The Council accounts for post-
employment benefits in the Comphensive Income and Expenditure Statement as benefits are eamed by employees
accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and
investiment returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs

However, statutory arangements require benefils eamned to be financed as the Council makes employer's
contibutions to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which it is direcily responsible. The debit balance
on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial shorttall in the benefits eamed by past and curent employees
and the resources the Council has set aside 1o meet thermn. The statuiory amangements will ensure that funding will
have been set aside by the time the benefits come to be paid.

'] Accumulated Absences Account

The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise carise on the General Fund
balance from accring for compensated absences eamed but not taken in the year e.g. staff annual leave
entitlement caried forward at the end of the financial year. Statutory amangements are expected to require that the
impact on the General Fund is neutralised by transfers to or from this Accumulated Absences Account

Accumulated Absences Account 31/03/2021 31/03/2020
£ £
At 1 April (353.643) {390,926)
Difference between finance and other costs and income
calculated on an accounting basis and finance costs
calculated in accordance with statutory requirements (126.020) 37,283

At 31 March (479.663) (353,643)
) Provisions Discount Rate Reserve

The Provisions Discount Rate Reserve covers the arangement, put in place by the Depoariment under its amendment
to the 2017/18 acceounts direction (see DIC circular 17/18), to allow for mitigation of the costs not allowed for by
Councils who had adopied the HM Treqsury Central Government discount rate for long-ferm provisions such as
Landfill costs.

Subject to agreement with the Department, this arangement allows a council fo spread the cost of the impact of
discount rate changes over a period of not more than é years.

Provisions Discount Rate Reserve 31/03/2021 31/03/2020

£ i
At 1 April {1,029,947) (1,106,772)
Difference between finance and other costs and income
calculated on an accounting basis and finance costs
calculated in accordance with statutory requirements {102,907) 76,825
Other Movements - -
Al 31 March (1.132.854) (1,029,947)



(1. 3l Significant Trading Operations

The Council considers its only significant trading operafion to be the provision of car parking facilifies. The resulls for
this are disclosed in Note 2, namely Income of £222,570 and costs of £310,989. Income was adversely impacted this
vear due 1o Covid.

In deciding whether a frading operation is significant the Council takes both financial and nen-financial criteria into
account,

Financial criteria taken inte account in deciding whether frading operations are significant to the Council are:

- the magnitude of each individual trading operation’s lurnover.

Non-financial criteria taken into account in deciding whether trading operafions are significant to the Council are:

- the importance of each individual trading operation to demonstrating the achievement of Council targets aond
improving performance.

- the exposure of the Council to service reputational loss risk by providing the service

- whether the provision of the service is likely to be of interest 1o the Council's key stakeholders and their needs.

i3l Agency Services

1. Newry BID Company Lid - Business Improvement Districts {BIDs) were an initiative established through the
Department for Communities which allow town centres 1o establish action plans 1o bring forward additional
initiatives, services and projects under a BID plan. Rate paying businesses within the defined BID area then vote
whelher to accept the plan or not. If the BID is approved by o maijerity of the ballot received an additional BID levy is
then invoiced to all businesses within the BID area 1o implement the agreed plan. The Council provides invoicing
and debt collection services to Newry BID Company Ltd. During the year the Council raised invoices on behalf of the
company amounting to £245,184. Payments were made to the company of £135.000. The company also reimburses
the Councils reasonable charges and expenses which amounted to £6,067 for the financial year under review. The
balance outstanding from the BID company's debtors amounted to £343,657 at 315t March 2021. This resulted in a net
amount of debt held by the Council on behalf of the company at 31st March 2021 of £21,946, this balance is
included in Short Term Creditors. No transactions other than the charges noted previously have been reflected in the
Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement.

2. C.A.N.N. is the abbreviation for Collaborative Action for the Natura Network. The Group caonsists of eleven project
partners. Agri-Food and Biosciences Institute, Argyll and the Isles Coast and Countryside Trust, Armagh City, Banbridge
and Craigaven Borough Council, East Border Region Ltd, Golden Eagle Trusl, Institute of Technology Sligo. Monaghan
County Council, Newry, Moume and Down District Council, Scottish Natural Heritage, Ulster University and the Ulster
wildlife Trust. The project is funded by the Special EU Programmes Body {SEUPB). Newry Mourne and Down District
Council [NMDDC) are the lead pariners where they pay the salaries of employees and invoices. Claims for the
project partners are made by the the individual organisations to SEUPB. The funding for all pariners is paid into
NMDDC's bank account, The Council subsequently pays this funding to the project partners. During this curent year
NMDDC received €867.094 of grants from SEUPB on behalf of the ten project partners and paid €867.096 to the
project partners, These fransactlions are not reflected in the Council's Revenue accounts. There were no balances
owing to the other project partners at 315t March 2021,

3. Full Fibre Northem Ireland {FFNI) is a consorfium of all ten Councils in NI outside of Belfast and the Business Services
Organisation. The Consortium has been awarded £24m from the Department for Digital, Cullure, Media and Sports
{DCMS) to implemenl a new collaborative programme to drive greater investment in fibre and digital infrastructure
acioss Northem Ireland. The Consortium's phased delivery programme will initially manage two DCMS funded
programmes - Local Full Fibre Network (LFFN} and Rural Gigabit Connectivity [RGC). It will also manage the delivery
of funther digital infrastructure initiatives and ensure a vital local link for future digital programmes at local authority
level.

The funding of £24m aims to deliver full fibre 1o over 900 sites, which includes Council buildings. Community Cenires,
GP Surgeries, Ambulance Siations and Fire Stations by December 2021, using the 'Public Sector Anchor Tenancy'
approach. This represenis Phase 1 of a proposed longer-term programme of fibre related investment.
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The FFN! Operations Team has been faced with a series of extremely complex and technical issues associoled with
the procurement process and risks in relation to the FFNI infrastructure. The impact of this has been that additional
funding for the centralised cperations team required is higher than the value originally anticipated. In December
2020 an additional request of £10,900 was made to fund operational team staft costs upfront for 8 Councils, six of
these have paid the contribulion by 31 March 2021 and two after that date. It was agreed from Januray 2021 that
consultancy services would be charged on an ad hoc basis if required. Business Services Organisation, a new
pariner, will be invoiced £70,000 to malch the Councils’ contiibution. Armagh City, Banbridge and Craigavon District
Council left the project mid-2020.

During the year ended 31st March 2021 Newry, Mourne and Down District Council received £210,403 from the other
consortium members. Expenditure of £270.814 has been incurred and £210,403 has been received, In addition
£27.577 receipts in advance has been recorded in Creditors ot 31/3/2021,

</ I8 Related Party Transactions

3

A Related Party Transaction is a transfer of resources or obligalions belween relaled parties, regardless of whether a
price is charged. Related Party Transaclion exclude fransactions with any other entily thal is a related party solely
because of its economic dependence on the Council or the Government of which it forms part. A reloted party is
one that has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions. This includes cases where the related parly entity and another entity are subject to
common control but excludes providers of finance in the course of their normal business with the Council and Trade
Unions in the course of their normal dealings with the Council.

Transactions with related parties not disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements are sef out below, where a
description of the nature, the amount of the tfransaction and the amount of the outstanding balance is as foliows.
Related party relationships where control exists should be disclosed irespective of whether there have been
fransactions between the related parties.

Members of the council have direct control over the council's financing and operating policies. The tolal of
members' allowances paid in 2020/21 is shown in Nole 7. During 2020/21, works and services 1o the value of
£3,256,087 were cormmissioned from companies in which individual members and senior officers had an interest. The
main recipients within this fotal were ARC 21 (see separate note below) and Mourmne Heritage Trust £307,172.

The Council paid grants of £78,299 tc a number of organisations in which Councillors and senior officers had an
interest. All payments were made with proper consideration of declaration of interests.

The Council incurred expenditure of £362,596 lo other councils of which £54,771 was outsianding as at 315t March
N

The Council has recorded income of £495,575 from other councils of which £130,19%9 was outstanding as at 315t
March 2021.

Arc 21, ajoint committee organisation, is a waste management group in Northem ireland representing Councils in
the east of the province. The Council's contiibution in the current year was £182.842. The Council paid an additional
£2,523.436 to Arc 21 for various services provided during the year including the use of the Material Recycling Facility
and received income of £47.119,

Date of authorisation for issue

The Chief Financial Officer authorised these financial statements for issue on 30 September 2021,
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